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January e, 2019
Dear Shareholder,

You are invited to attend the 2019 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of TE Connectivity Ltd., to be held on Wednesday, March 13,
2019 at 2:00 p.m., Central European Time (9:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time), at the Park Hyatt Ziirich, Beethoven-Strasse 21, 8002 Ziirich,
Switzerland. Details of the business to be presented at the meeting can be found in the accompanying Invitation to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders and Proxy Statement.

If you cannot attend, you can ensure that your shares are represented at the meeting by casting your vote either electronically at your
earliest convenience or by promptly completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card.

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.

Sincerely,

Thomas J. Lynch
Chairman of the Board

TE Connectivity Ltd.
Rheinstrasse 20
CH-8200 Schaffhausen, Switzerland

Tel: +41 (0)52 633 66 61
Fax: +41 (0)52 633 66 99
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Time and Date:
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Agenda Items:
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TE CONNECTIVITY LTD.

Rheinstrasse 20

CH-8200 Schaffhausen, Switzerland

Invitation to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

2:00 p.m., Central European Time (9:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time), on March 13, 2019

The Park Hyatt Ziirich, Beethoven-Strasse 21, 8002 Ziirich, Switzerland

1. Election of twelve (12) director nominees proposed by the Board of Directors;

2. Election of the Chairman of the Board of Directors;

3. Election of the members of the Management Development and Compensation Committee;

4. Election of the Independent Proxy;

5. Approval of (i) the 2018 Annual Report of TE Connectivity Ltd. (excluding the statutory financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018, the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal
year ended September 28, 2018 and the Swiss Compensation Report for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2018), (ii) the statutory financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2018, and (iii) the consolidated financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended
September 28, 2018;

6. Release of the members of the Board of Directors and executive officers of TE Connectivity for activities
during the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018;

7. Election of (i) Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal year
2019, (ii) Deloitte AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our Swiss registered auditor until our next annual general
meeting, and (iii) PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our special auditor until our next
annual general meeting;

8. Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer Compensation;

9. Binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation amount for executive
management;

10. Binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation amount for the Board of
Directors;

11. Carryforward of unappropriated accumulated earnings;

12. Declaration of dividend;

13. Authorization relating to share repurchase program;

14. Approval of share capital reduction for shares acquired under our share repurchase program;

15. Approval of any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement 1
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Under rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), we have elected to provide access to our
proxy materials over the Internet. Accordingly, we are sending a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy
Materials, or the Notice, to our shareholders registered in our share register as of the close of business

(Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019. All shareholders will have the ability to access the proxy
materials on the website referred to in the Notice or to request to receive a printed set of the proxy materials.
Instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the Internet or to request a printed copy may be found
in the Notice. The Notice also instructs you on how you may submit your proxy over the Internet or via mail.
You will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials unless you request one in the manner set forth in
the Notice or as otherwise described in the next paragraph. This permits us to conserve natural resources and
reduce our printing costs, while giving shareholders a convenient and efficient way to access our proxy
materials and vote their shares.

A copy of the proxy materials, including a proxy card, also will be sent to any additional shareholders who
are registered in our share register as shareholders with voting rights, or who become beneficial owners
through a nominee registered in our share register as a shareholder with voting rights, as of the close of

business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019.

Shareholders who are registered with voting rights in our share register as of the close of business (Eastern

Standard Time) on February 21, 2019 have the right to attend the Annual General Meeting and vote their
shares, or may grant a proxy to vote on each of the agenda items in this invitation and any other matter
properly presented at the meeting for consideration.

Shareholders who hold their shares in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee ("Beneficial Owners")
should follow the instructions provided by their bank, broker or nominee. Beneficial Owners who have not
obtained a proxy from their bank, broker or nominee are not entitled to vote in person at the Annual General
Meeting.

Shareholders of record with voting rights who do not wish to attend the Annual General Meeting have the
right to appoint Dr. René Schwarzenbach, Proxy Voting Services GmbH, as independent proxy, pursuant to
article 9 of the Swiss Ordinance Against Excessive Compensation at Listed Corporations (the "Swiss
Ordinance"), with full rights of substitution, by appointing the independent proxy and voting electronically
or submitting a proxy card with your votes. The Swiss Ordinance prohibits from acting as proxies company

officers (Organstimmrechtsvertretung) and institutions subject to the Swiss Federal Law on Banks and
Savings Banks as well as professional asset managers that hold proxies for holders of record concerning

deposited shares (Depotstimmrechtsvertretung).

2 2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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Date of Availability:

By order of the Board of Directors,

Harold G. Barksdale
Corporate Secretary

January e, 2019

Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

The proxies granted to the independent proxy must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., Central European
Time (12:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time) on March 12, 2019. A shareholder of record who gives a proxy
may revoke it at any time before it is exercised by giving notice in person of the revocation and voting in
person at the meeting, or, subject to timing limitations, by delivering a revocation letter and subsequent
proxy card to the independent proxy.

With regard to the items listed on the agenda, or if new agenda items (other than those on the agenda) or new
proposals or motions regarding agenda items set out in this Invitation to the Annual General Meeting are
being put forth at the meeting, the independent proxy will vote in accordance with the specific instructions
of the shareholder, or if selected by the shareholder in granting the proxy as a general instruction, in
accordance with the recommendation of the company's Board of Directors at the meeting, or abstain from
voting if the shareholder did not provide instructions.

Our proxy materials are being made available on or about January 18, 2019 to each shareholder of record of
TE Connectivity registered shares at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019.

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement 3
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PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF

TE CONNECTIVITY LTD.
TO BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, MARCH 13,2019

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

TE Connectivity's Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held at 2:00 p.m., Central
European Time (9:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time), on March 13, 2019, at The Park Hyatt Ziirich, Beethoven-Strasse 21, 8002 Ziirich,
Switzerland. The information provided in this proxy statement is for your use in determining how you will vote on the agenda items described
within.

We have made available our proxy materials to each person who is registered as a holder of our shares in the register of shareholders (such
owners are often referred to as "holders of record" or "record holders") as of the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019.
We also will send a copy of the proxy materials, including the proxy card, to any holder of record who requests them in the manner set forth in
the Notice and to any additional shareholders who become registered in our share register after the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on
January 9, 2019 and continue to be registered in our share register at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019.
Distribution to shareholders of the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice"), is scheduled to begin on or about
January 18, 2019.

We have requested that banks, brokerage firms and other nominees who hold TE Connectivity shares on behalf of the owners of the shares
(such owners are often referred to, and we refer to them below, as "beneficial owners," "beneficial shareholders" or "street name holders") as of
the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019 forward the Notice to those beneficial shareholders and forward the proxy
materials, along with a voting instruction card, for any additional beneficial owners who acquire their shares after January 9, 2019 and continue
to hold them at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019. We have agreed to pay the reasonable expenses of the
banks, brokerage firms and other nominees for forwarding these materials. We also have provided for the proxy materials to be sent to persons
who have interests in our shares through participation in our employee share purchase plans. These individuals are not eligible to vote directly at
the Annual General Meeting, but they may instruct the trustees of these plans how to vote the shares represented by their interests. The proxy
card also will serve as voting instructions for the trustees of the plans.

Are proxy materials available on the Internet?
Yes.
Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual General Meeting to be Held on March 13, 2019.

Our proxy statement for the Annual General Meeting to be held on March 13, 2019, other proxy material and our annual report to
shareholders for fiscal year 2018 is available at http://www.te.com/TEAnnualMeeting.

Under SEC rules, we have elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the Internet. Accordingly, we are sending a Notice of
Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to our shareholders registered in our share register as of the close of business (Eastern Standard Time)
on January 9, 2019.

4 2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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All shareholders will have the ability to access the proxy materials on the website referred to in the Notice or to request to receive a printed set
of the proxy materials. Instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the Internet or to request a printed copy may be found in the
Notice. The Notice also instructs you on how you may submit your proxy over the Internet or via mail. You will not receive a printed copy of
the proxy materials unless you request one in the manner set forth in the Notice or you acquire your shares after January 9, 2019 and continue to
be registered in our share register at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019, in which case we will send you the
proxy materials. This permits us to conserve natural resources and reduce our printing costs, while giving shareholders a convenient and efficient
way to access our proxy materials and vote their shares. Our proxy materials are being made available on or about January 18, 2019.

What agenda items are scheduled to be voted on at the meeting?

The fifteen (15) agenda items scheduled for a vote are:

Agenda Item No. 1: To elect twelve (12) nominees proposed by the Board of Directors as directors to hold office
until the next annual general meeting of shareholders;

Agenda Item No. 2: To elect the Chairman of the Board of Directors;

Agenda Item No. 3: To elect the members of the Management Development and Compensation Committee;

Agenda Item No. 4: To elect the independent proxy for the 2020 annual general meeting of shareholders;

Agenda Item No. 5: To approve (i) the 2018 Annual Report of TE Connectivity Ltd. (excluding the statutory
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018, the consolidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended September 28, 2018 and the Swiss Compensation Report for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2018), (ii) the statutory financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018,
and (iii) the consolidated financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended September 28,

2018;

Agenda Item No. 6: To release the members of the Board of Directors and executive officers of TE Connectivity
for activities during the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018;

Agenda Item No. 7: To elect (i) Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for
fiscal year 2019, (ii) Deloitte AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our Swiss registered auditor until our next annual
general meeting, and (iii) PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our special auditor until our next

annual general meeting;

Agenda Item No. 8: To cast an advisory vote to approve named executive officer compensation;

Agenda Item No. 9: To cast a binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation amount
for executive management;

Agenda Item No. 10: To cast a binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation
amount for the Board of Directors;

Agenda Item No. 11: To approve the carryforward of unappropriated accumulated earnings;

10
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Agenda Item No. 12: To approve a dividend payment to shareholders equal to $1.84 per issued share to be paid in
four equal quarterly installments of $0.46 starting with the third
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fiscal quarter of 2019 and ending in the second fiscal quarter of 2020 pursuant to the terms of the dividend
resolution;

Agenda Item No. 13: To approve an authorization relating to our share repurchase program;

Agenda Item No. 14: To approve a share capital reduction for shares acquired under our share repurchase program
and related amendments to our articles of association; and

Agenda Item No. 15: To approve any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

What is the recommendation of the Board of Directors on each of the agenda items scheduled to be voted on at the meeting? How do
the Board of Directors and executive officers intend to vote with respect to the agenda items?

TE Connectivity's Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the agenda items listed above as recommended by our Board
of Directors. Our directors and executive officers have indicated that they intend to vote their shares in favor of each of the agenda items, except
for Agenda Item No. 6 (Release of the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers of TE Connectivity for Activities during the
Fiscal Year ended September 28, 2018), where they are by law precluded from voting their shares. On January e 2019, our directors and
executive officers and their affiliates beneficially owned approximately ® % of the outstanding shares.

What is the difference between being a shareholder of record and a beneficial owner?

If your shares are registered directly in your name in our share register operated by our stock transfer agent, you are considered the
"shareholder of record" of those shares.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee on your behalf and the broker, bank or nominee is
registered in our share register as a shareholder with voting rights, your broker, bank or other nominee is considered the shareholder of record
and you are considered the "beneficial owner" or "street name holder" of those shares. In this case, the shareholder of record that is registered as
a shareholder with voting rights has forwarded either the Notice or the proxy materials, as applicable, and separate voting instructions, to you.
As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct the shareholder of record how to vote your shares by following the voting instructions they
have provided to you. Because you are not the shareholder of record, you may not vote your shares in person at the meeting unless you receive a
valid proxy from your broker, bank or other nominee that holds your shares giving you the right to vote the shares in person at the meeting.

Who is entitled to vote?

Shareholders of record

All shareholders registered in our share register at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019 are entitled to vote
on the matters set forth in this proxy statement and any other matter properly presented at the meeting for consideration, provided such
shareholders become registered as shareholders with voting rights by that time. See " I am a shareholder of record. How do I become registered
as a shareholder with voting rights?"

Beneficial owners
Beneficial owners whose banks, brokers or nominees are shareholders registered in our share register with respect to the beneficial owners'

shares at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019 are entitled to vote on the matters set forth in this proxy statement
and any other matter properly presented at the meeting for consideration, provided such banks, brokers or nominees

6 2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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become registered as shareholders with voting rights. See " I am a shareholder of record. How do I become registered as a shareholder with
voting rights?"

What if I am the record holder or beneficial owner of shares at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019, but
sell or otherwise transfer those shares before the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019?

Holders of record and beneficial owners will not be entitled to vote their shares or provide instructions to vote with respect to their shares if
they hold shares at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on January 9, 2019 but sell or otherwise transfer those shares before the close
of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019.

I am a shareholder of record. How do I become registered as a shareholder with voting rights?

If you are a shareholder of record, you have been registered as a shareholder with voting rights in our share register, unless in certain
circumstances (such as failure to comply with particular disclosure requirements set forth in our articles of association) we have specifically
advised you that you are registered as a shareholder without voting rights.

How do I attend the Annual General Meeting?

For admission to the meeting, shareholders and their authorized representatives must bring a valid government-issued photo identification,
such as a driver's license or a passport. Shareholders of record with voting rights should bring the Notice or Admission Ticket they have received
to the check-in area, where their ownership will be verified. Those who have beneficial ownership of registered shares held by a bank, brokerage
firm or other nominee which has voting rights must bring to the check-in area a valid proxy from their banks, brokers or nominees showing that
they own TE Connectivity registered shares as of the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019.

Registration at the meeting will begin at 1:00 p.m., Central European Time (8:00 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time) and close at 1:45 p.m.,
Central European Time (8:45 a.m., Eastern Daylight Time), and the meeting will begin at 2:00 p.m., Central European Time (9:00 a.m., Eastern
Daylight Time). See " How do I vote if I am a shareholder of record?" and " How do I vote if I am a beneficial shareholder?" for a discussion of
who is eligible and how to vote in person at the Annual General Meeting.

Security measures will be in place at the meeting to help ensure the safety of attendees. Cameras, sound recording devices, signs,
photographs and visual displays are not permitted in the meeting without the prior permission of TE Connectivity. We reserve the right to
inspect bags, backpacks, briefcases or other packages brought to the meeting. Cell phones and other sound transmitting devices must be turned
off during the meeting.

How do I vote if I am a shareholder of record?
If you are a registered shareholder, you can vote in the following ways:

At the Annual General Meeting: 1f you are a shareholder of record with voting rights of TE Connectivity registered shares who plans to
attend the Annual General Meeting and wishes to vote your shares in person, we will give you a ballot at the meeting.

Even if you plan to be present at the Annual General Meeting, we encourage you to vote by the Internet or complete and mail
the proxy card to vote your shares by proxy. If you are a holder of record, you may still attend the Annual General Meeting
and vote in person.

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement 7

14



Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

Table of Contents

By Internet: You can vote over the Internet at www.proxyvote.com by following the instructions in the Notice of Internet Availability of
Proxy Materials previously sent to you or on the proxy card. By casting votes electronically, you will authorize the independent proxy, Dr. René
Schwarzenbach, with full rights of substitution, to vote your shares on your behalf.

By Mail: You can vote by marking, dating and signing the proxy card (which will be sent to you at your request in accordance with
instructions provided in the Notice) and returning it by mail for receipt by no later than indicated below. By marking, dating, signing and mailing
the proxy card as instructed, you authorize the independent proxy, Dr. René Schwarzenbach, with full rights of substitution, to vote your shares
on your behalf. If you vote by proxy card/mail, you will need to return via mail your completed proxy card to the independent proxy, Dr. René
Schwarzenbach, Proxy Voting Services GmbH, in the postage pre-paid return envelope provided with the proxy card.

In order to assure that your votes are tabulated in time to be voted at the Annual General Meeting, you must vote
electronically by 5:00 p.m., Central European Time (12:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time) on March 12, 2019, or submit your
proxy card by mail so that it is received by 5:00 p.m., Central European Time (12:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time) on
March 12, 2019.

If you have voted electronically or timely submitted a properly executed proxy card, your shares will be voted by the independent proxy as
you have instructed. If any other matters are properly presented at the meeting, the independent proxy will either (i) vote the shares represented
by your completed proxy in accordance with the specific instructions given by you, (ii) if selected by you in granting your proxy (as a general
instruction), in accordance with the recommendation of the company's Board of Directors at the meeting, or (iii) if no instructions are given,
abstain from voting your shares.

How do I vote if I am a beneficial shareholder?

General: If you hold your shares in street name, you should provide instructions to your bank or broker on how you wish your vote to be
recorded by following the instructions on your voting instruction form supplied by your bank or broker with these proxy materials.

At the Annual General Meeting: 1f you are a shareholder who owns shares in street name, you are not entitled to vote in person at the
Annual General Meeting unless you have a valid proxy, executed in your favor, from the bank, broker or nominee holder of record of your
shares. We will then give you a ballot at the meeting.

Can I vote by Internet?

Yes. If you are a shareholder of record, see the Internet voting instructions provided on the Notice or proxy card. If you are a beneficial
owner, see the voting instruction card provided by your bank, broker or other nominee.

Can I vote by telephone?

If you are a shareholder of record, you cannot vote by telephone. If you are a beneficial owner, see the voting instruction card provided by
your broker, bank or other nominee for telephone voting instructions.

Can I appoint TE Connectivity officers as my proxy?

In accordance with Swiss regulations, shareholders may not appoint company officers as proxies.

8 2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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If my shares are held in ''street name'' by my broker, will my broker vote my shares for me?

We recommend that you contact your broker. Your broker can give you directions on how to instruct the broker to vote your shares. If you
have not provided instructions to the broker, your broker will be able to vote your shares with respect to "routine” matters but not "non-routine"
matters pursuant to New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") rules. We believe the following agenda items will be considered non-routine under
NYSE rules and therefore your broker will not be able to vote your shares with respect to these agenda items unless the broker receives
appropriate instructions from you: Agenda Item No. 1 (Election of Directors), Agenda Item No. 2 (Election of Chairman of the Board), Agenda
Item No. 3 (Election of Members of Management Development and Compensation Committee), Agenda Item No. 6 (Release of the Members of
the Board of Directors and Executive Officers of TE Connectivity for Activities During the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2018), Agenda
Item No. 8 (Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer Compensation), Agenda Item No. 9 (Binding Vote to Approve Fiscal Year
2020 Maximum Aggregate Compensation Amount for Executive Management), Agenda Item No. 10 (Binding Vote to Approve Fiscal Year
2020 Maximum Aggregate Compensation Amount for the Board of Directors).

What will happen if I don't vote my shares?

If you are a shareholder of record and you do not vote electronically or sign and return a proxy card with votes indicated, no votes will be
cast on your behalf on any of the items of business at the meeting. If you are a shareholder of record and you return a signed proxy card but
make no specific direction as to how your shares are to be voted, the independent proxy will vote your shares in accordance with the general
instruction "FOR" each of the director nominees and "FOR" each of the other agenda items (including each subpart thereof) and in accordance
with the recommendation of the Board of Directors.

If you are a beneficial shareholder and you do not provide voting instructions to your bank or broker, subject to any contractual
arrangements, your bank or broker may vote your shares in its discretion on all agenda items except Agenda Item No. 1 (Election of Directors),
Agenda Item No. 2 (Election of Chairman of the Board), Agenda Item No. 3 (Election of Members of Management Development and
Compensation Committee), Agenda Item No. 6 (Release of the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers of TE Connectivity
for Activities During the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2018), Agenda Item No. 8 (Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer
Compensation), Agenda Item No. 9 (Binding Vote to Approve Fiscal Year 2020 Maximum Aggregate Compensation Amount for Executive
Management), Agenda Item No. 10 (Binding Vote to Approve Fiscal Year 2020 Maximum Aggregate Compensation Amount for the Board of
Directors), and no votes will be cast on your behalf on Agenda Items No. 1, No. 2, No. 3, No. 6, No. 8, No. 9 and No. 10.

How many shares can vote at the Annual General Meeting?

Our registered shares are our only class of voting stock. As of January 9, 2019, there were ®  registered shares issued and outstanding
and entitled to vote; however, shareholders who are not registered in our share register as shareholders or do not become registered as
shareholders with voting rights as of the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019 will not be entitled to attend, vote at or
grant proxies to vote at, the Annual General Meeting. See " I am a shareholder of record. How do I become registered as a shareholder with
voting rights?" Shares duly represented at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to one vote per share for each matter presented at the
Annual General Meeting. Shareholders who are registered in our share register as of the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on
February 21, 2019 and who are registered with voting rights may vote in person at the Annual General Meeting as discussed under " How do |
vote if I am a shareholder of record? At the Annual General Meeting."

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement 9
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What quorum is required for the Annual General Meeting?

The presence, in person or by proxy, of at least the majority of the registered shares entitled to vote constitutes a quorum for the conduct of
business at the Annual General Meeting.

What vote is required for approval of each agenda item and what is the effect of broker non-votes and abstentions?

The following agenda items require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual General Meeting, whether in person or
by proxy. A majority means at least half plus one additional vote of the votes which are cast at a general meeting of shareholders.

Agenda Item No. 1: Election of twelve (12) director nominees proposed by the Board of Directors;

Agenda Item No. 2: Election of the Chairman of the Board of Directors;

Agenda Item No. 3: Election of the members of the Management Development and Compensation Committee;

Agenda Item No. 4: Election of the Independent Proxy;

Agenda Item Nos. 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3: Approval of (i) the 2018 Annual Report of TE Connectivity Ltd. (excluding the statutory
financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018, the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year
ended September 28, 2018 and the Swiss Compensation Report for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018), (ii) the
statutory financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018, and (iii) the

consolidated financial statements of TE Connectivity Ltd. for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2018;

Agenda Item Nos. 7.1, 7.2 and 7.3: Election of (i) Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting
firm for fiscal year 2019, (ii) Deloitte AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our Swiss registered auditor until our next annual general
meeting, and (iii) PricewaterhouseCoopers AG, Zurich, Switzerland, as our special auditor until our next annual general

meeting;

Agenda Item No. 8: Advisory Vote to Approve Named Executive Officer Compensation;

Agenda Item No. 9: Binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation amount for executive
management;

Agenda Item No. 10: Binding vote to approve fiscal year 2020 maximum aggregate compensation amount for the Board of
Directors;

Agenda Item No. 11: Carryforward of unappropriated accumulated earnings;

Agenda Item No. 12: Declaration of dividend;

Agenda Item No. 13: Authorization relating to share repurchase program;

17
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Agenda Item No. 14: Share capital reduction for shares acquired under our share repurchase program; and

Agenda Item No. 15: Approval of any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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The following agenda item requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual General Meeting, whether in person or
by proxy, not counting the votes of any member of the Board of Directors or any executive officer of TE Connectivity.

Agenda Item No. 6: The release of the members of the Board of Directors and executive officers for activities during the
fiscal year ended September 28, 2018.

Registered shares which are represented by broker non-votes (which occur when a broker holding shares for a beneficial owner does not
vote on a particular agenda item because the broker does not have discretionary voting power for that particular item and has not received
instructions from the beneficial owner) and registered shares which are cast as abstentions on any matter, are counted towards the determination
of a quorum but will not be counted as a vote cast and will be disregarded and have no effect on the proposal.

Who will count the votes and certify the results?

An independent vote tabulator will count the votes. Broadridge Financial Solutions has been appointed by the Board of Directors as the
independent inspector of election and will determine the existence of a quorum, validity of proxies and ballots, and certify the results of the
voting.

If I vote and then want to change or revoke my vote, may 1?

If you are a shareholder of record and have (i) voted via the Internet, you may change your vote and revoke your proxy by submitting
subsequent voting instructions via the Internet by the deadline for Internet voting; (ii) submitted a proxy card to the independent proxy, you may
change or revoke your vote by submitting a revocation letter and new proxy card directly to the independent proxy so that it is received by no
later than 5:00 p.m., Central European Time (12:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time) on March 12, 2019; or (iii) either voted via the Internet or
submitted a proxy card to the independent proxy, you may appear in person at the meeting and give notice in person of the revocation of your
prior vote by the applicable method and vote in person by ballot.

Written revocations to the independent proxy should be directed to the following address: Dr. René Schwarzenbach, Proxy Voting
Services GmbH, Grossmunsterplatz 1, Postfach 173, CH-8024 Zurich, Switzerland.

Your presence without voting at the meeting will not automatically revoke your proxy, and any revocation during the meeting will not
affect votes previously taken at the meeting.

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee on your behalf, follow the voting instructions provided
to you with these materials to determine how you may change your vote.

Can I sell my shares before the meeting if I have voted?

Yes. TE Connectivity does not block the transfer of shares before the meeting. However, unless you are a shareholder of record with voting
rights at the close of business (Eastern Standard Time) on February 21, 2019, your vote will not be counted.

Are shareholders permitted to ask questions at the meeting?

During the Annual General Meeting, shareholders may ask questions or make comments relating to agenda items when permitted by the
moderator.

2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement 11
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Whom may I contact for assistance?

You should contact D. F. King & Co., Inc., whom we have engaged as a proxy solicitor for the Annual General Meeting. The contact
information for D. F. King is below:

D. F. King & Co., Inc.

(800) 848-3402 (US callers only)

+1(212) 269-5550

Email: TEL @dfking.com (reference TE Connectivity in the subject line)

12 2019 Annual General Meeting Proxy Statement
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the number of outstanding shares of TE Connectivity beneficially owned as of December 11, 2018 by each
current director and nominee, each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation table and all of our executive officers, directors and
nominees as a group. The address of our executive officers, directors and nominees is c/o TE Connectivity, 1050 Westlakes Drive, Berwyn,

Pennsylvania 19312.

Number of
Shares

Beneficially
Beneficial Owner Owned™
Directors, Nominees and Executive Officers:
Terrence R. Curtin®®® 610,284
John S. Jenkins, Jr.®® 133,264
Steven T. Merkt®® 179,207
Heath A. Mitts@®® 67,383
Kevin N. Rock®@®®) 219,649
Pierre R. Brondeau® 35,203
Carol A. ("John") Davidson® 10,373
William A. Jeffrey® 16,502
David M. Kerko®
Thomas J. Lynch@®®® 695,214
Yong Nam® 16,278
Daniel J. Phelan® 33,356
Paula A. Sneed® 36,333

Abhijit Y. Talwalkar®

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities

Accounts and notes receivable, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Deferred income taxes

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
(September 30, 2011 - $19,362; December 31, 2010 - $18,628)

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Investment in affiliates

Other assets

Total

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Short-term borrowings and capital lease obligations
Income taxes

Other accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

September 30,
2011

$2,750
229
8,544
6,413
154
705
18,795

13,235

5,493
5,550
1,079
3,642
$47,794

$3,981
3,301
520
3,568
11,370

December 31,
2010

$4,263
2,538
5,635
5,967
122
534
19,059

11,339

2,617
2,704
1,041
3,650
$40,410

$4,230
133
225
4,801
9,389
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Long-term borrowings and capital lease obligations 12,200
Other liabilities 11,065
Deferred income taxes 1,135

Total liabilities 35,770

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock 237
Common stock, $0.30 par value; 1,800,000,000 shares authorized,;

Issued at September 30, 2011 - 1,010,894,000; December 31, 2010 - 1,004,351,000 303
Additional paid-in capital 9,983
Reinvested earnings 13,432
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,684
Common stock held in treasury, at cost (87,041,000 (6727

shares at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010) ’
Total DuPont stockholders’ equity 11,544
Noncontrolling interests 480
Total equity 12,024
Total $47,794

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 6.

4

10,137
11,026
115

30,667

237
301

9,227
12,030
(5,790

(6,727

9,278
465
9,743
$40,410
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E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(Dollars in millions)

Operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets
Contributions to pension plans

Other noncash charges and credits - net
Change in operating assets and liabilities - net
Cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Investments in affiliates

Payments for businesses - net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sales of assets - net of cash sold
Net decrease in short-term financial instruments
Forward exchange contract settlements

Other investing activities - net

Cash used for investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid to stockholders

Net increase in borrowings

Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Other financing activities - net

Cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page 6.

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010
$3,133 $2,674
944 904
195 142
272 ) (704
846 442
(4,415 ) (3,423
431 35
(1,211 ) (899
35 ) (71
(6,459 ) —
62 173
2,365 201
(299 ) 396

1 (94
(5,576 ) (294
(1,152 ) (1,122
4,503 1,327
(672 ) —
833 199
52 (18
3,564 386
68 (60
$(1,513 ) $67
4,263 4,021
$2,750 $4,088
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP) for interim financial information and the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. In the opinion of management, all adjustments
(consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair statement of the results for interim
periods have been included. Results for interim periods should not be considered indicative of results for a full year.
These interim Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto contained in the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010, collectively referred to as the 2010 Annual Report’. The Consolidated Financial Statements
include the accounts of the company and all of its subsidiaries in which a controlling interest is maintained, as well as
variable interest entities for which DuPont is the primary beneficiary. Certain reclassifications of prior year’s data
have been made to conform to current year classifications.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance on fair value
measurements and disclosures which becomes effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15,
2011. The new guidance enhances disclosures and refines certain aspects of fair value measurement that primarily
affect financial instruments. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a material effect on the company's
financial position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued amendments to the presentation of comprehensive income which become effective for
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The amendments eliminate the current reporting
option of displaying components of other comprehensive income within the statement of changes in stockholders'
equity. Under the new guidance, the company will be required to present either a single continuous statement of
comprehensive income or an income statement immediately followed by a statement of comprehensive income. The
company is currently evaluating which of the two presentation methods it will adopt.

Note 2. Danisco Acquisition

In January 2011, DuPont and its wholly owned subsidiary, DuPont Denmark Holding ApS (DDHA), entered into a
definitive agreement with Danisco A/S (Danisco), a global enzyme and specialty food ingredients company, for
DDHA to make a public tender offer for all of Danisco's outstanding shares at a price of 665 Danish Kroner (DKK) in
cash per share. On April 29, 2011, DDHA increased the price of its tender offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares
of Danisco to DKK 700 in cash per share.

On May 19, 2011, the company acquired approximately 92.2 percent of Danisco's outstanding shares, excluding
treasury shares, pursuant to the previously announced tender offer. As of September 30, 2011, DuPont had acquired
all of Danisco's remaining outstanding shares. This acquisition has established DuPont as a leader in industrial
biotechnology with science-intensive innovations that address global challenges in food production and reduced fossil
fuel consumption. The Danisco acquisition is valued at $6,417, plus net debt assumed of $617.
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As part of the acquisition, DuPont incurred $3 and $85 in transaction related costs in the third quarter 2011 and
year-to-date 2011, respectively. These costs were recorded in cost of goods sold and other operating charges.

In the second and third quarters 2011, the businesses acquired from Danisco contributed net sales of $1,000 and net
income attributable to DuPont of $(50), which excludes $20 after-tax ($26 pre-tax) of additional interest expense
related to the debt issued to finance the acquisition. These contributions included a $125 after-tax ($175 pre-tax)
charge related to the fair value step-up of inventories acquired and sold during this time period.

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents DuPont's consolidated results of operations as if Danisco had
been acquired on January 1, 2010. These amounts were calculated after conversion from International Financial
Reporting Standards to GAAP and adjusting Danisco's results to reflect the additional depreciation and amortization
that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets had been applied from January 1, 2010, together with the consequential tax effects. These adjustments also
reflect the additional interest expense

6
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incurred on the debt to finance the purchase. The 2011 pro forma earnings were adjusted to exclude the acquisition
related costs incurred in 2011 and the nonrecurring expense related to the fair value inventory step-up adjustment. The
2010 pro forma earnings were adjusted to include these charges. The pro forma financial information presented below
is for informational purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if
the acquisition and borrowings undertaken to finance the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of 2010.

Pro forma for the Pro forma for the

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $9,238 $7,678 $30,757 $26,110
Net income attributable to DuPont 544 400 3,344 2,531

The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date:
Fair value of assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents $48
Accounts and notes receivable !

522
Inventories 2 709
Property, plant and equipment 1,720
Goodwill 3 2,900
Other intangible assets 4 2,859
Other current and non-current assets 79
Total assets acquired $8,837
Fair value of liabilities assumed
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $482
Short-term borrowings 342
Long-term borrowings 323
Other liabilities 219
Deferred income taxes > 1,054
Total liabilities assumed $2,420

; The gross amount of accounts and notes receivable acquired was $531, of which $9 was expected to be
uncollectible.
The fair value of inventories acquired included a step-up in the value of $175, of which $132 and $175 was expensed
2to cost of goods sold and other operating charges for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2011,
respectively.
Goodwill will not be deductible for statutory tax purposes. Goodwill is attributable to Danisco's workforce and the
3synergies in technology, operations and market access that are expected from the acquisition. Approximately $900
and $2,000 of goodwill was allocated to the Industrial Biosciences and Nutrition & Health segments, respectively.
4 Other intangible assets acquired of $1,002 are indefinite-lived (see Note 9).
s The deferred income tax liabilities assumed represent the adjustments for the tax impact of fair value adjustments,
primarily relating to definite-lived intangible assets.

The above amounts represent the preliminary allocation of purchase price. Final determination of the fair values may
result in further adjustments to the values presented above.

26



Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

27



Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

Table of Contents
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except per share)

Note 3. Other Income, Net

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Cozaar®/Hyzaar® income $68 $109 $195 $397
Royalty income 30 36 96 89
Interest income 28 28 88 68
Equity in earnings of affiliates, excluding 34 33 17 119
exchange gains/losses
Net (losses) gains on sales of assets (1 ) 1 38 96
Net exchange losses ! 6 ) (160 ) (145 ) (25 )
Miscellaneous income and expenses, net 2 8 19 26 146
Total $161 $66 $415 $890
1 The company routinely uses forward exchange contracts to offset its net exposures, by currency, related to

its foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities. The objective of this program is to maintain an
approximately balanced position in foreign currencies in order to minimize, on an after-tax basis, the effects of
exchange rate changes on net monetary asset positions. The net pre-tax exchange gains and losses are partially offset
by the associated tax impact.

2 Miscellaneous income and expenses, net, generally includes interest items, insurance recoveries, litigation
settlements and other items.

Note 4. Employee Separation / Asset Related Charges, Net

During the third quarter 2011, the company initiated a restructuring program as a result of the integration of Danisco
as described below. A complete discussion of the prior restructuring initiatives is included in the company's 2010
Annual Report in Note 4, “Employee Separation / Asset Related Charges, Net.” At September 30, 2011, total liabilities
relating to current and prior restructuring activities were $52.

2011 Restructuring Program

During the third quarter 2011, the company initiated a series of actions to achieve the expected cost synergies
associated with the Danisco acquisition. As a result, the company recorded a $36 charge in employee separation /
asset related charges, net, primarily for employee separation costs in the United States of America (U.S.) and Europe.
This charge reduced segment earnings as follows: Industrial Biosciences - $8, Nutrition & Health - $10, and Other -
$18. The company expects this initiative and all related payments to be substantially complete in 2013.

Account balances and activity for the 2011 restructuring program are summarized below:

Employee
Separation
Costs

Charges to income for three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 $36
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Payments
Balance as of September 30, 2011

¢!
$35
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2009 Restructuring Program

Account balances and activity for the 2009 restructuring program are summarized below:

Employee Other Non-
Separation personnel Total
Costs Charges !
Balance at December 31, 2010 $46 $1 $47
Payments (36 ) (1 ) (37 )
Net translation adjustment 2 — 2
Balance as of September 30, 2011 $12 $— $12

I Other non-personnel charges consist of contractual obligation costs.

The actions related to the 2009 restructuring program were substantially completed by the end of 2010 with payments
continuing into 2011, primarily in Europe.

Note 5. Provision for Income Taxes

In the third quarter 2011, the company recorded a tax provision of $109, including $41 of tax expense primarily
associated with the company's policy of hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of
its operations.

Year-to-date 2011, the company recorded a tax provision of $727, including $101 of tax benefit primarily associated
with the company's policy of hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of its
operations.

In the third quarter 2010, the company recorded a tax benefit of $39, including $157 of tax benefit primarily
associated with the company’s policy of hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of
its operations.

Year-to-date 2010, the company recorded a tax provision of $811, including $54 of tax expense primarily associated
with the company’s policy of hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of its
operations and $49 net tax benefit related to the adjustment of income tax accruals associated with settlements of tax
contingencies related to prior years.

Each year the company files hundreds of tax returns in the various national, state and local income taxing jurisdictions
in which it operates. These tax returns are subject to examination and possible challenge by the taxing authorities.
Positions challenged by the taxing authorities may be settled or appealed by the company. As a result, there is an
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the company's financial statements in accordance with accounting for
income taxes and accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. It is reasonably possible that changes to the company's
global unrecognized tax benefits could be significant, however, due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of
completion of audits and possible outcomes, a current estimate of the range of increases or decreases that may occur
within the next twelve months cannot be made.

9
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Note 6. Earnings Per Share of Common Stock

Set forth below is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator for basic and diluted earnings per share
calculations for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income attributable to DuPont $452 $367 $3,101 $2,655
Preferred dividends 3 ) (3 ) (8 ) (8 )
Net income available to DuPont common $449 $364 $3.093 $2.647
stockholders
Denominator:
VB‘;esliihted'average number of common shares - 935 356 600 908,366,000 929,369,000 906,991,000

Dilutive effect of the company’s employee
compensation plans

Weighted-average number of common shares -

Diluted

11,129,000 10,134,000 13,443,000 7,996,000

943,485,000 918,500,000 942,812,000 914,987,000

The following average number of stock options were antidilutive, and therefore, were not included in the diluted
earnings per share calculations:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Average number of stock options 8,678,000 47,108,000 2,904,000 56,845,000

The change in the average number of stock options that were antidilutive in the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2011 compared to the same periods last year was primarily due to changes in the company’s average
stock price.

Note 7. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The company uses the following valuation
techniques to measure fair value for its financial assets and financial liabilities:
Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Significant other observable inputs (e.g. quoted prices for similar items in active markets, quoted

Level 2 — prices for identical or similar items in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable such as interest rate and yield curves, and market-corroborated inputs);
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Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are valued based on management’s estimates
of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.
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The company has determined that its financial assets and liabilities are level 1 and level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the following financial assets and financial liabilities were measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using the type of inputs shown:
Fair Value Measurements at
September 30, 2011 Using

September 30, Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs
2011
Financial assets
Derivatives $301 $— $301
Available-for-sale securities 11 11 —
$312 $11 $301
Financial liabilities
Derivatives $101 $— $101

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2010 Using

December 31, Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs

2010
Financial assets
Derivatives $153 $— $153
Available-for-sale securities 17 17 —
$170 $17 $153
Financial liabilities
Derivatives $132 $— $132

See Note 10 for further information regarding the fair value of the company's outstanding debt. In addition, see Note
21, “Long-Term Employee Benefits”, to the company's 2010 Annual Report for information regarding the company's
pension assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Note 8. Inventories

September 30, December 31,

2011 2010
Finished products $3,773 $3,191
Semifinished products 2,368 2,564
Raw materials, stores and supplies 1,099 855

7,240 6,610
Adjustment of inventories to a last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis (827 ) (643 )
Total $6,413 $5,967

Note 9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The increase in goodwill from $2,617 at December 31, 2010 to $5,493 at September 30, 2011 primarily relates to the
goodwill associated with the Danisco acquisition (see Note 2).
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of other intangible assets by major class are as follows:

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net

Intangible assets subject to amortization
(Definite-lived):

Customer lists $1,927 $(219 ) $1,708 $525 $(160 ) $365
Patents 529 (65 ) 464 118 (44 ) 74
Purchased and licensed technology 1,815 (859 ) 956 1,617 (765 ) 852
Trademarks 57 24 ) 33 57 (22 ) 35
Other ! 377 (183 ) 194 333 (163 ) 170
4,705 (1,350 ) 3,355 2,650 (1,154 ) 1,496
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization (Indefinite-lived):
In-process research and development 71 — 71 — — —
Microbial cell factories 2 306 — 306 — — —
Pioneer germplasm 3 975 — 975 975 — 975
Trademarks/tradenames 843 — 843 233 — 233
2,195 — 2,195 1,208 — 1,208
Total $6,900 $(1,350 ) $5,550 $3,858 $(1,154 ) $2,704

| Primarily consists of sales and grower networks, marketing and manufacturing alliances and noncompetition
agreements.
Microbial cell factories, derived from natural microbes, are used to sustainably produce enzymes, peptides and

, chemicals using natural metabolic processes. The company recognized the microbial cell factories as an intangible
asset upon the acquisition of Danisco. This intangible asset is expected to contribute to cash flows beyond the
foreseeable future and there are no legal, regulatory, contractual, or other factors which limit its useful life.
Pioneer germplasm is the pool of genetic source material and body of knowledge gained from the development and

5 delivery stage of plant breeding. The company recognized germplasm as an intangible asset upon the acquisition of
Pioneer. This intangible asset is expected to contribute to cash flows beyond the foreseeable future and there are no
legal, regulatory, contractual, or other factors which limit its useful life.

The aggregate pre-tax amortization expense for definite-lived intangible assets was $58 and $195 for the three and
nine month periods ended September 30, 2011, respectively, and $32 and $142 for the three and nine month periods
ended September 30, 2010, respectively. The estimated aggregate pre-tax amortization expense for 2011 and each of
the next five years is approximately $284, $334, $333, $322, $290 and $202. Estimated aggregate pre-tax amortization
expense includes approximately $115 of amortization expense in each of the next five years related to definite-lived
intangible assets acquired as part of the Danisco transaction.

Note 10. Debt
The carrying value of the company's outstanding debt was approximately $15,500 and $10,300 as of September 30,

2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The estimated fair value of the company's outstanding debt, including
interest rate financial instruments, based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on current rates
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offered to the company for debt of the same remaining maturities, was approximately $16,700 and $10,900 as of
September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The increase in the carrying value and fair value of debt
was primarily due to the financing of the Danisco acquisition, the assumption of Danisco's debt and the increase in
borrowings used to fund normal seasonal working capital needs.

12
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Short-Term Borrowings

In April 2011, the company issued a total of $1,000 in commercial paper as part of financing the Danisco acquisition.
In addition, the company assumed $342 of Danisco's short-term debt, which was refinanced through the issuance of
commercial paper in June 2011.

Long-Term Borrowings

In March 2011, the company issued $400 of 1.75% Senior Notes due 2014, $600 of Floating Rate Senior Notes due
2014, $500 of 2.75% Senior Notes due 2016 and $500 of 4.25% Senior Notes due 2021 (collectively referred to as the
“Notes”). The Floating Rate Notes bear interest at three-month USD LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate) plus
0.42%. The net proceeds of $1,991 from the issuance of the Notes were used as part of financing the Danisco
acquisition.

In addition, the company assumed $323 of floating rate DKK denominated long-term debt from Danisco. The floating
rate long-term debt bears interest at the Copenhagen Interbank Offered Rate plus a weighted-average margin of
0.85%. The weighted-average remaining maturity of the assumed debt is 10 years. In third quarter 2011, the company
refinanced $269 of long-term debt assumed from Danisco through the issuance of commercial paper.

In January 2011, the company entered into a $4,000 bridge loan facility and a $2,000 bridge loan facility in
connection with the acquisition of Danisco. When the company completed the $3,000 financing for the acquisition,
the $4,000 bridge loan facility was reduced by an equal amount. The remaining commitments under these facilities
terminated on May 19, 2011, when the company acquired approximately 92.2 percent of Danisco's outstanding shares.

Note 11. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Guarantees
Product Warranty Liability

The company warrants that its products meet standard specifications. The company’s product warranty liability was
$19 and $20 as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Estimates for warranty costs are based
on historical claims experience.

Indemnifications

In connection with acquisitions and divestitures, the company has indemnified respective parties against certain
liabilities that may arise in connection with these transactions and business activities prior to the completion of the
transaction. The term of these indemnifications, which typically pertain to environmental, tax and product liabilities,
is generally indefinite. In addition, the company indemnifies its duly elected or appointed directors and officers to the
fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, against liabilities incurred as a result of their activities for the company,
such as adverse judgments relating to litigation matters. If the indemnified party were to incur a liability or have a
liability increase as a result of a successful claim, pursuant to the terms of the indemnification, the company would be
required to reimburse the indemnified party. The maximum amount of potential future payments is generally
unlimited. The carrying amounts recorded for all indemnifications as of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010
was $106 and $100, respectively. Although it is reasonably possible that future payments may exceed amounts
accrued, due to the nature of indemnified items, it is not possible to make a reasonable estimate of the maximum
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potential loss or range of loss. No assets are held as collateral and no specific recourse provisions exist.

In connection with the 2004 sale of the majority of the net assets of Textiles and Interiors, the company indemnified
the purchasers, subsidiaries of Koch Industries, Inc. (INVISTA), against certain liabilities primarily related to taxes,
legal and environmental matters and other representations and warranties under the Purchase and Sale Agreement. The
estimated fair value of the indemnity obligations under the Purchase and Sale Agreement was $70 and was included in
the indemnifications balance of $106 at September 30, 2011. Under the Purchase and Sale Agreement, the company’s
total indemnification obligation for the majority of the representations and warranties cannot exceed $1,400. The other
indemnities are not subject to this limit. In March 2008, INVISTA filed suit in the Southern District of New York
alleging that certain representations and warranties in the Purchase and Sale Agreement were breached and, therefore,
that DuPont is obligated to indemnify it. DuPont disagrees with the extent and value of INVISTA’s claims. DuPont has
not changed its estimate of its total indemnification obligation under the Purchase and Sale Agreement as a result of
the lawsuit. A 2012 trial date has been set.
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Obligations for Equity Affiliates & Others

The company has directly guaranteed various debt obligations under agreements with third parties related to equity
affiliates, customers, suppliers and other affiliated companies. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the
company had directly guaranteed $550 and $544, respectively, of such obligations. In addition, the company had $16
relating to guarantees of historical obligations for divested subsidiaries as of September 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010. These amounts represent the maximum potential amount of future (undiscounted) payments that the company
could be required to make under the guarantees. The company would be required to perform on these guarantees in
the event of default by the guaranteed party.

The company assesses the payment/performance risk by assigning default rates based on the duration of the
guarantees. These default rates are assigned based on the external credit rating of the counterparty or through internal
credit analysis and historical default history for counterparties that do not have published credit ratings. For
counterparties without an external rating or available credit history, a cumulative average default rate is used.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, a liability of $120 and $109, respectively, was recorded for these
obligations, representing the amount of payment/performance risk for which the company deems probable. This
liability is principally related to obligations of the company’s polyester films joint venture, which are guaranteed by the
company.

In certain cases, the company has recourse to assets held as collateral, as well as personal guarantees from customers
and suppliers. Assuming liquidation, these assets are estimated to cover approximately 39 percent of the $313 of
guaranteed obligations of customers and suppliers. Set forth below are the company’s guaranteed obligations at
September 30, 2011:

Short-Term Long-Term Total
Obligations for customers and suppliers!:

Bank borrowings (terms up to 5 years) $142 $170 $312

Leases on equipment and facilities (terms up to 4 years) — 1 1

Obligations for other affiliated companies?:

Bank borrowings (terms less than 1 year) 195 — 195

Obligations for equity affiliates?:

Bank borrowings (terms up to 2 years) 13 6 19

Revenue bonds (terms up to 4 years) — 23 23

Total obl%gatlons for .customfzrs, suppliers, other affiliated 350 200 550
companies, and equity affiliates

Obligations for divested subsidiaries?:

Conoco (terms up to 15 years) — 16 16

Total obligations for divested subsidiaries — 16 16

Total $350 $216 $566

1 Existing guarantees for customers and suppliers arose as part of contractual agreements.
Existing guarantees for equity affiliates and other affiliated companies arose for liquidity needs in normal
operations.
3 The company has guaranteed certain obligations and liabilities related to a divested subsidiary, Conoco,
which has indemnified the company for any liabilities the company may incur pursuant to these guarantees.

Imprelis®
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The company has received claims and been served with multiple lawsuits seeking class action status alleging that the
use of Imprelis® herbicide caused damage to certain trees. In August 2011, the company suspended sales of Imprelis®.
In September 2011, the company began a process to fairly resolve claims associated with the use of Imprelis®. The
deadline for property owners to file claims is November 30, 2011. In connection with this claims process, the
company recorded a charge of $75 in cost of goods sold and other operating charges in the third quarter 2011. The
company will continue to evaluate reported claim damage as additional information becomes available, which could
result in future charges that cannot be reasonably estimated at this time; the company intends to seek recovery from its
insurance carriers for costs associated with this matter in excess of $100.
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Litigation

The company is subject to various legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of its business including product
liability, intellectual property, commercial, environmental and antitrust lawsuits. It is not possible to predict the
outcome of these various proceedings. Except as otherwise noted, management does not anticipate their resolution
will have a materially adverse effect on the company's consolidated financial position or liquidity. However, the
ultimate liabilities could be significant to results of operations in the period recognized.

PFOA

DuPont uses PFOA (collectively, perfluorooctanoic acids and its salts, including the ammonium salt), as a processing
aid to manufacture fluoropolymer resins and dispersions at various sites around the world including its Washington
Works plant in West Virginia. At September 30, 2011, DuPont has accruals of $21 related to the PFOA matters
discussed below.

The accrual includes charges related to DuPont's obligations under agreements with the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency and the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection. These obligations include
surveying, sampling and testing drinking water in and around the company's Washington Works site and offer
treatment or an alternative supply of drinking water if tests indicate the presence of PFOA in drinking water at or
greater than the national Provisional Health Advisory.

Drinking Water Actions

In August 2001, a class action, captioned Leach v DuPont, was filed in West Virginia state court against DuPont and
the Lubeck Public Service District alleging that residents living near the Washington Works facility had suffered, or
may suffer, deleterious health effects from exposure to PFOA in drinking water.

DuPont and attorneys for the class reached a settlement in 2004 that binds about 80,000 residents. In 2005, DuPont
paid the plaintiffs’ attorneys’ fees and expenses of $23 and made a payment of $70, which class counsel designated to
fund a community health project. The company is also funding a series of health studies by an independent science
panel of experts in the communities exposed to PFOA to evaluate available scientific evidence on whether any
probable link exists between exposure to PFOA and human disease. The company expects the independent science
panel to complete these health studies through July 2012 at a total estimated cost of $33. In addition, the company is
providing state-of-the-art water treatment systems designed to reduce the level of PFOA in water to six area water
districts, including the Little Hocking Water Association (LHWA), until the science panel determines that no probable
link exists between PFOA and human disease or until applicable water standards can be met without such treatment.
All of the water treatment systems are operating.

The settlement resulted in the dismissal of all claims asserted in the lawsuit except for personal injury claims. If the
independent science panel concludes that no probable link exists between exposure to PFOA and any diseases, then
the settlement would also resolve personal injury claims. If it concludes that a probable link does exist between
exposure to PFOA and any diseases, then DuPont would also fund up to $235 for a medical monitoring program to
pay for such medical testing. In this event, plaintiffs would retain their right to pursue personal injury claims. All
other claims in the lawsuit would remain dismissed by the settlement. DuPont believes that it is remote that the panel
will find a probable link. Therefore, at September 30, 2011, the company has not established any accruals related to
medical monitoring or personal injury claims. However, there can be no assurance as to what the independent science
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panel will conclude.

At September 30, 2011, there were four other actions pending brought by or on behalf of water district customers.
These cases generally claim PFOA contamination of drinking water and seek a variety of relief including
compensatory and punitive damages, testing, treatment, remediation and monitoring. In addition, the Ohio action,
which was brought by the LHWA and is currently in discovery, claims “imminent and substantial endangerment to
health and or the environment” under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). In the West Virginia
action, the court entered judgment for DuPont in the first quarter 2010 which was affirmed by the Fourth Circuit Court
of Appeals in April 2011. Plaintiffs are seeking U.S. Supreme Court review. In the third quarter 2011, the court
approved an $8.3 class action settlement for two consolidated actions in New Jersey, which the company paid in
October 2011. DuPont denies the claims alleged in these civil drinking water actions and is defending itself
vigorously.
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While DuPont believes that it is reasonably possible that it could incur losses related to PFOA matters in addition to
those matters discussed above for which it has established accruals, a range of such losses, if any, cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

Benlate®

In 1991, DuPont began receiving claims by growers that use of Benlate® 50 DF fungicide had caused crop damage.
DuPont has since been served with thousands of lawsuits, most of which have been disposed of through trial,
dismissal or settlement.

At September 30, 2011, there were nine cases in Florida courts alleging that Benlate® caused crop damage. The 2006
trial of two cases, involving twenty-seven Costa Rican fern growers, resulted in a verdict against the company. In
2009, the judgment was reversed on appeal and individual trials were ordered. In December 2010, the appellate court
affirmed the order for separate trials and the dismissal of the verdicts for seven of the fern growers on grounds that
their claims were barred by the statute of limitations. In August 2011, the Florida Supreme Court declined to hear
plaintiffs' appeal. Plaintiffs have filed motions to strike DuPont's pleadings in these two cases. On January 19, 2011,
the court entered an order in five of the other crop cases striking DuPont's pleadings for alleged discovery abuse. In
the damages trial of one of these cases held in June 2011, the jury awarded $0.2 in compensatory damages plus
interest and $0.8 in punitive damages. DuPont will appeal the pre-trial order and the verdict.

The 2010 jury trial of a personal injury case claiming that exposure to Benlate® caused plaintiff's kidney, pancreatic
and brain cancer resulted in a unanimous defense verdict. Plaintiff has appealed.

The company does not believe that Benlate® caused the damages alleged in each of these cases and denies the
allegations of fraud and misconduct. The company continues to defend itself in ongoing matters. At September 30,
2011, the company has accruals of about $0.1 related to Benlate®. The company does not expect losses in excess of
the accruals, if any, to be material.

Spelter, West Virginia

In September 2006, a West Virginia state court certified a class action captioned Perrine v DuPont, against DuPont
that sought relief including the provision of remediation services and property value diminution damages for 7,000
residential properties in the vicinity of a closed zinc smelter in Spelter, West Virginia. The action also sought medical
monitoring for an undetermined number of residents in the class area. In November 2010, plaintiffs and DuPont
reached an agreement to settle this matter for $70 which the company paid in the first quarter 2011. In addition, the
agreement requires DuPont to fund a medical monitoring program. The initial set-up costs associated with the
program were included in the $70. As of September 30, 2011, the company has accruals of $6 related to funding
medical monitoring services under the program. The company expects that future costs or charges, if any, associated
with the program will not be material.

Environmental

The company is also subject to contingencies pursuant to environmental laws and regulations that in the future may
require the company to take further action to correct the effects on the environment of prior disposal practices or
releases of chemical or petroleum substances by the company or other parties. The company accrues for
environmental remediation activities consistent with the policy set forth in Note 1 in the company’s 2010 Annual
Report. Much of this liability results from the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
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Act (CERCLA, often referred to as Superfund), RCRA and similar state and global laws. These laws require the
company to undertake certain investigative and remedial activities at sites where the company conducts or once
conducted operations or at sites where company-generated waste was disposed. The accrual also includes estimated
costs related to a number of sites identified by the company for which it is probable that environmental remediation
will be required, but which are not currently the subject of enforcement activities.

Remediation activities vary substantially in duration and cost from site to site. These activities, and their associated
costs, depend on the mix of unique site characteristics, evolving remediation technologies, diverse regulatory agencies
and enforcement policies, as well as the presence or absence of potentially responsible parties. At September 30, 2011,
the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets included a liability of $427, relating to these matters and, in
management’s opinion, is appropriate based on existing facts and circumstances. The average time frame, over which
the accrued or presently unrecognized amounts may be paid, based on past history, is estimated to be 15-20 years.
Considerable uncertainty exists with respect to these costs and, under adverse changes in circumstances, potential
liability may range up to two to three times the amount accrued as of September 30, 2011.
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Other

The company has various purchase commitments incident to the ordinary conduct of business. In the aggregate, such
commitments are not at prices in excess of current market.

Note 12. Stockholders’ Equity

The company’s Board of Directors authorized a $2,000 share buyback plan in June 2001. During the three months
ended September 30, 2011, the company purchased and retired 8.8 million shares at a total cost of $400 under this
plan. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the company purchased and retired 13.8 million shares at a
total cost of $672 under this plan. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, there were no
purchases of stock under this plan. As of September 30, 2011, the company has purchased 39.7 million shares at a
total cost of $1,884. In April 2011, the company's Board of Directors authorized a $2,000 share buyback plan. This
plan will not commence until the plan authorized in June 2001 is completed. There is no expiration date on the current
authorizations.
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A summary of the changes in equity for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 is provided

below:

Consolidated Changes
in Equity for the
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011
Beginning balance
Comprehensive
income:

Sale of a majority
interest in a
consolidated
subsidiary

Net income

Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of
tax:

Cumulative translation
adjustment

Net revaluation and
clearance of cash flow
hedges to earnings
Pension benefit plans
Other benefit plans
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of
tax:

Comprehensive
income

Common dividends
Preferred dividends
Common stock issued
- compensation plans
Common stock
repurchased

Common stock retired
Total Equity as of
September 30, 2011

Consolidated Changes
in Equity for the
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2010
Beginning balance
Comprehensive
income:

Additiona Accumulated
Comprehensﬁ’veferreﬂlommorb . ]Reinvested Other Treasury Noncontrolling
Total aid-in .
Income Stock Stock . Earnings ComprehensStwck Interests
Capital Loss
$12,502 — $237 $305 $9,978 $13,683 $(5.453 ) $(6,727) $479
3 ) 3 )
460 $ 460 452 8
(348 ) (348 ) (348 )
22 22 24 2 )
103 103 103
1o Hao ) 10 )
(233 ) (233 )
227 $ 227 1
(384 ) (382 ) 2 )
A3 ) A3 )
85 85
(400 ) (400 )
— 2 ) (@0 ) 318 ) 400
$12,024 $237 $303 $9,983 $13,432 $(5,684 ) $(6,727) $ 480
o Accumulated
ComprehensiP@eferredJommoﬁ qdlt.lona'keinvested Other Treasury Noncontrolling
Total aid-in . .
Income Stock  Stock . Earnings Comprehensi$eock Interests
Capital Loss
$9,276 $237 $298 $8,569 $12,245 $(5,796 ) $(6,727) $ 450
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Net income 369 $ 369 367 2
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of

tax:

Cqmulatlve translation 108 108 106 )
adjustment

Net revaluation and

clearance of cash flow 1 1 1

hedges to earnings

Pension benefit plans 86 86 86

Other benefit plans (8 ) (8 ) (8 )
Net unrealized gain on | | 1

securities

Other comprehensive

income (loss), net of 188 188

tax:

Comprehenswe 557 $ 557 i

income

Common dividends 374 ) (374 )

Preferred dividends 3 ) 3 )

Common stock issued
- compensation plans
Total Equity as of
September 30, 2010

195 1 194

$9,651 $237 $299 $8,763 $12,235 $(5,610 ) $(6,727) $ 454

Includes comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests of $6 and $4 for the three months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Consolidated Changes
in Equity for the

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2011
Beginning balance
Comprehensive
income:

Sale of a majority
interest in a
consolidated
subsidiary

Net income

Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of
tax:

Cumulative translation
adjustment

Net revaluation and
clearance of cash flow
hedges to earnings
Pension benefit plans
Other benefit plans
Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of
tax:

Comprehensive
income

Common dividends
Preferred dividends
Common stock issued
- compensation plans
Common stock
repurchased

Common stock retired
Total Equity as of
September 30, 2011

Consolidated Changes
in Equity for the

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2010
Beginning balance
Comprehensive
income:

Net income

Other comprehensive
income (loss), net of

Additiona Accumulated
Comprehensil?neferreﬂfommorb . ]Reinvested Other Treasury Noncontrolling
Total aid-in .
Income Stock Stock . Earnings ComprehensBteck  Interests
Capital Loss
$9,743 $237 $301 $9,227 $12,030 $(5,790 ) $(6,727) $ 465
(€ ) 3 )
3,133 $3,133 3,101 32
(231 ) (231 ) (231 )
56 56 61 S )
305 305 305
29 ) (9 ) (29 )
101 101
3,234 $3,234 2
(1,159 ) (1,150 ) ¢ )
@8 ) ® )
889 6 883
672 ) 672 )
— 4 ) a7 ) ¢4 ) 672
$12,024 $237 $303 $9,983 $13.432 $(5,684 ) $(6,727) $480
.. Accumulated
Comprehensivléreferrediommoﬁ qdlt.lonaf{einvested Other Treasury Noncontrolling
Total aid-in . .
Income Stock  Stock . Earnings ComprehensiStock Interests
Capital Loss
$7,651 $237 $297 $8,469 $10,710 $(5,771 ) $(6,727) $ 436
2,674  $2,674 2,655 19
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tax:

Cumulative translation

adjustment @ )@ ) (44 ) !
Net revaluation and

clearance of cash flow (11 ) (11 ) (11 )

hedges to earnings

Pension benefit plans 253 253 253

Other benefit plans 35 ) (35 ) 35 )

Net unrealized loss on

securities 2 ) @ ) 2 )

Other comprehensive

income (loss), net of 162 162

tax:

Comprehenswe 2836 $2.836 2

income

Common dividends (1,124 ) (1,122 ) (2
Preferred dividends (8 ) (8 )

Common st(?ck issued 296 ’ 294

- compensation plans

Total Bquity as of ¢4 ¢5 $237 $299 $8763 $12235 $(5,610 ) $(6,727) $ 454

September 30, 2010

Includes comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests of $27 and $20 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Note 13. Derivatives and Other Hedging Instruments
Objectives and Strategies for Holding Derivative Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the company enters into contractual arrangements (derivatives) to reduce its
exposure to foreign currency, interest rate and commodity price risks under established procedures and controls. The
company has established a variety of approved derivative instruments to be utilized in each financial risk management
program, as well as varying levels of exposure coverage and time horizons based on an assessment of risk factors
related to each hedging program. Derivative instruments utilized during the period include forwards, options, futures
and swaps. The company has not designated any nonderivatives as hedging instruments.

The company established a financial risk management framework that incorporated the Corporate Financial Risk
Management Committee and established financial risk management policies and guidelines that authorize the use of
specific derivative instruments and further establishes procedures for control and valuation, counterparty credit
approval and routine monitoring and reporting. The counterparties to these contractual arrangements are major
financial institutions and major commodity exchanges. The company is exposed to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by these counterparties. The company manages this exposure to credit loss through the
aforementioned credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures and, to the extent possible, by restricting the period
over which unpaid balances are allowed to accumulate. The company anticipates performance by counterparties to
these contracts and therefore no material loss is expected. Market and counterparty credit risks associated with these
instruments are regularly reported to management.

The company hedges foreign currency-denominated revenue and monetary assets and liabilities, certain business
specific foreign currency exposures and certain energy feedstock purchases. In addition, the company enters into
agricultural commodity derivatives to hedge exposures relevant to agricultural feedstocks.

Foreign Currency Risk

The company's objective in managing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is to reduce earnings and cash flow
volatility associated with foreign currency rate changes. Accordingly, the company enters into various contracts that
change in value as foreign exchange rates change to protect the value of its existing foreign currency-denominated
assets, liabilities, commitments and cash flows.

The company routinely uses forward exchange contracts to offset its net exposures, by currency, related to the foreign
currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of its operations. The primary business objective of this hedging
program is to maintain an approximately balanced position in foreign currencies so that exchange gains and losses
resulting from exchange rate changes, net of related tax effects, are minimized.

Interest Rate Risk

The company uses interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate mix of the total debt portfolio and related overall
cost of borrowing.

Interest rate swaps involve the exchange of fixed for floating rate interest payments to effectively convert fixed rate

debt into floating rate debt based on USD LIBOR. Interest rate swaps allow the company to achieve a target range of
floating rate debt.
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Commodity Price Risk

Commodity price risk management programs serve to reduce exposure to price fluctuations on purchases of inventory
such as natural gas, copper, corn, soybeans and soybean meal.

The company enters into over-the-counter and exchange-traded derivative commodity instruments to hedge the
commodity price risk associated with energy feedstock and agricultural commodity exposures.
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Fair Value Hedges

At September 30, 2011, the company maintained a number of interest rate swaps, implemented at the time the debt
instruments were issued, that involve the exchange of fixed for floating rate interest payments. These swaps allow the
company to achieve a target range of floating rate debt. All interest rate swaps qualify for the shortcut method of
hedge accounting, thus there is no ineffectiveness related to these hedges. The company maintains no other significant
fair value hedges. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had interest rate swap agreements
with gross notional amounts of approximately $1,000.

Cash Flow Hedges

The company maintains a number of cash flow hedging programs to reduce risks related to foreign currency and
commodity price risk. While each risk management program has a different time maturity period, most programs
currently do not extend beyond the next two-year period.

The company uses foreign currency exchange contracts to offset a portion of the company’s exposure to certain foreign
currency-denominated revenues so that gains and losses on these contracts offset changes in the U.S. dollar value of
the related foreign currency-denominated revenues. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had
foreign currency exchange contracts with gross notional amounts of $1,111 and $1,220, respectively.

A portion of natural gas purchases are hedged to reduce price volatility using fixed price swaps and options. At
September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had energy feedstock and other contracts with gross
notional amounts of $61 and $151, respectively.

The company contracts with independent growers to produce seed inventory. Under these contracts, growers are
compensated with bushel equivalents that are sold to the company for the market price of grain for a period of time.
Derivative instruments, such as commodity futures and options that have a high correlation to the underlying
commodity, are used to hedge the commodity price risk involved in compensating growers.

The company utilizes agricultural commodity futures to manage the price volatility of soybean meal. These derivative
instruments have a high correlation to the underlying commodity exposure and are deemed effective in offsetting
soybean meal feedstock price risk.

At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had agricultural commodity contracts with gross
notional amounts of $120 and $297, respectively.

Cash flow hedge results are reclassified into earnings during the same period in which the related exposure impacts
earnings. Reclassifications are made sooner if it appears that a forecasted transaction will not materialize. The
following table summarizes the effect of cash flow hedges on accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

Pre-tax Tax After-Tax Pre-tax Tax After-Tax
Beginning balance $11 $(G5 ) $6 $(119 ) $42 $(77 )
Additions and revaluations of 13 (5 ) 8 (18 ) 6 (12 )

derivatives designated as cash
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Clearance of hedge results to
earnings

Ending balance
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Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

Pre-tax Tax After-Tax Pre-tax Tax After-Tax
Beginning balance $(47 ) $16 $(31 ) $(101 ) $36 $(65 )
Additions and revaluations of
derivatives designated as cash 19 (6 ) 13 (80 ) 29 (51 )
flow hedges
Clegrance of hedge results to 77 (29 ) 48 64 24 ) 40
earnings
Ending balance $49 $(19 ) $30 $(117 ) $41 $(76 )

At September 30, 2011, the pre-tax, tax and after-tax amounts expected to be reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss into earnings over the next 12 months are $57, $(19) and $38, respectively.

Hedges of Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
At September 30, 2011, the company did not maintain any hedges of net investment in a foreign operation.
Derivatives not Designated in Hedging Relationships

The company uses forward exchange contracts to reduce its net exposure, by currency, related to foreign
currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities. The netting of such exposures precludes the use of hedge
accounting. However, the required revaluation of the forward contracts and the associated foreign
currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities results in a minimal earnings impact, after taxes. At

September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had foreign currency contracts with gross notional amounts
of $5,172 and $7,449, respectively.

The company entered into cross-currency swaps to hedge foreign currency fluctuations on long-term intercompany
loans associated with the acquisition of Danisco. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had
cross-currency swaps with gross notional amounts of $1,074 and $0, respectively.

The company has risk management programs for agricultural commodities that do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had agricultural commodities contracts with
gross notional amounts of $12 and $310, respectively.

For certain acquired Danisco facilities, a portion of electricity purchases are hedged to reduce price volatility using
fixed price swaps. At September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the company had energy feedstock contracts with
gross notional amounts of $11 and $0, respectively.

Contingent Features

At September 30, 2011, the company did not maintain any derivative contracts with credit-risk-related contingent

features.
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The following tables provide information on the location and amounts of derivative fair values in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet and derivative gains and losses in the Consolidated Income Statement:

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
September 30, December 31, September 30, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps $71 2 $40 2 $— $—
Foreign currency contracts 35 120 14 43 4
Energy feedstocks — 3 124 4 75 4
Total derivatives designated as hedging $106 $63 $28 $78

instruments

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Foreign currency contracts $170 1 $90 1 $72 4 $54 4
Cross-currency swaps 25 3 — — —

Agricultural feedstocks — — 1 4 —

Total derivatives not designated as hedging $195 $90 $73 $54
instruments

Total derivatives $301 $153 $101 $132

1 Recorded in accounts and notes receivable, net.

2 Recorded in other assets.

3 Recorded in accounts and notes receivable, net and other assets.

4

Recorded in other accrued liabilities.

The Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Consolidated Income Statement

Fair Value Hedging
Amount of Gain or Amount of Gain or Amount of Gain or Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized in(Loss) Recognized in  (Loss) Recognized in(Loss) Recognized in
Income of DerivativeIncome on Hedged ItemIncome of DerivativeIncome on Hedged Item
Three
Derivatives in Fair Value Months Ended Three Months Ended gilrf;rl:g;?ths Ended Three Months Ended
Hedging Relationships ~ September September 30, 2011 P September 30, 2010
30, 2010
30, 2011
Interest rate swaps $ 22 1$@22 )1 $28 1$@28 ) 1
Total $ 22 $ (22 ) $28 $ (28 )

Derivatives in Fair Value Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Hedging Relationships  September 30, 2011  September 30, 2011  September 30, 2010  September 30, 2010
Interest rate swaps $31 1 $(31 )1 $67 1 $(67 )1
Total $31 $(31 ) $67 $(67 )
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Gain (loss) was recognized in interest expense, which offset to $0.
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Cash Flow Hedging

Derivatives in Cash Flow
Hedging Relationships
Foreign currency contracts
Agricultural feedstocks
Energy feedstocks

Total

Foreign currency contracts
Agricultural feedstocks
Energy feedstocks

Total

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized in
OCI! on Derivative
(Effective Portion)

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011
$15

5

(7

$13

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2011
$(5

33

9

$19

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized in
OCI! on Derivative
(Effective Portion)

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Reclassified from
Accumulated OCI! into
Income (Effective
Portion)

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011
$(7

(18

$(25

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2011
$(19

2

(56

$(77

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Reclassified from
Accumulated OCI! into
Income (Effective
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)

)
)
)

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized in
Income on Derivative
(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from
Effectiveness Testing)
Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011

2 $—
1

3
$1

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2011
2 $—
36
3
$6

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized in
Income on Derivative
(Ineffective Portion and
Amount Excluded from

Portion) . .
Effectiveness Testing)
Derivatives in Cash Flow Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
Hedging Relationships September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010
Treasury rate contracts $G3 ) $— $—
Foreign currency contracts (12 ) (3 )2 —
Agricultural feedstocks 11 — 2
Energy feedstocks (14 ) (17 )3 —
Total $(18 ) $(20 ) $2
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010
Treasury rate contracts $QG3 ) $— $—
Foreign currency contracts 2 ) 9 2 —
Agricultural feedstocks (31 ) (21 )3 (1
Energy feedstocks (44 ) (52 )3 —
Total $(80 ) $(64 ) $(
1 OCl is defined as other comprehensive income (loss).
2 Gain (loss) was reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into net sales.
3 Gain (loss) was recognized in cost of goods sold and other operating charges.

)3
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Derivatives not Designated in Hedging Instruments

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Indommuo of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in Income or

Derivative Derivative
Derivatives Not Designated in Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Hedging Instruments Ended September Ended September  Ended September Ended September
30, 2011 30, 2010 30, 2011 30, 2010
Foreign currency contracts $ 180 1 $ 443 )1 $ (227 )y 1 $ 100 1
Cross-currency swaps 42 1 — 25 1 —
Agricultural feedstocks (6 )2 (20 )26 25 2
Energy feedstocks (1 )2 — (2 ) 2 —
Interest rate swaps — — (1 ) 2 —
Total $ 215 $ (463 ) (199 ) 105

1 Gain (loss) recognized in other income, net, was partially offset by the related gain (loss) on the foreign

currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the company's operations, which were $(228) and $57 for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2011, respectively, and $283 and $(125) for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2010, respectively.

2 Gain (loss) was recognized in cost of goods sold and other operating charges.

Note 14. Long-Term Employee Benefits

The following sets forth the components of the company’s net periodic benefit cost for pensions:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Service cost $62 $53 $182 $154
Interest cost 316 316 940 946
Expected return on plan assets (371 ) (360 ) (1,105 ) (1,076 )
Amortization of unrecognized loss 153 126 459 379
Amortization of prior service cost 4 4 12 12
Net periodic benefit cost $164 $139 $488 $415

The following sets forth the components of the company’s net periodic benefit cost for other long-term employee
benefits:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Service cost $8 $7 $25 $21
Interest cost 53 60 159 179
Amortization of unrecognized loss 15 15 45 44
Amortization of prior service benefit (30 ) (27 ) (91 ) (80 )
Net periodic benefit cost $46 $55 $138 $164
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Note 15. Segment Information

In the second quarter 2011, in view of the company's expanded business portfolio following the Danisco acquisition,
two new reportable segments were added: Industrial Biosciences and Nutrition & Health. The Industrial Biosciences
segment includes Danisco's enzyme business and the DuPont Sorona® renewably sourced polymer and Bio-PDO™
businesses, previously reported in Other. The new Nutrition & Health segment contains Danisco's specialty food
ingredients business and DuPont's Nutrition & Health business, previously reported as part of the Agriculture &
Nutrition segment. The former Agriculture & Nutrition segment, now renamed Agriculture, includes the Pioneer and
Crop Protection businesses. In summary, the company has 14 businesses, aggregated into nine reportable segments
based on similar economic characteristics, the nature of the products and production processes, end-use markets,
channels of distribution and regulatory environment. The company continues to include certain embryonic businesses
not included in the reportable segments, such as pre-commercial programs, and nonaligned businesses in Other.

Segment sales include transfers to another business segment. Products are transferred between segments on a basis
intended to reflect, as nearly as practicable, the market value of the products. Segment pre-tax operating income (loss)
(PTOYI) is defined as operating income (loss) before income taxes, exchange gains (losses), corporate expenses and
interest. Prior year's data have been reclassified to reflect the current organizational structure.

Three Months

. . . Nutrition
Ended Agriculture2EleCtmm@(&St.nal Perfor.mariéerf(?rmaﬁeefor'malﬁafety & Pharr®thentiFalsl!
September Communﬁmmmsncei_l Chemical$Coatings Materials Protection
30 ealth4
2011
f;i‘snem $1,368  $841 $293  $844  $2.142 $1,100 $1,745 $1,001 $—$2  $9,336
Transfers (1 ) “ ) 4 [ — (58 ) — 27 ) (4 ) — — 98 )
Net sales 1,367 837 289 844 2,084 1,100 1,718 997 — 2 9,238
PTOI (194 )56 99 27 )78 (34 )78 593 72 231 118 70 (78 )7 850
2010
f;ge‘:lem $967 $703  $— $304  $1,675 $937 $1,578 $871 $—$49 $7.084
Transfers — 4 ) — — (59 ) — (17 ) (3 ) — — 83 )
Net sales 967 699 — 304 1,616 937 1,561 868 — 49 7,001
PTOI (191 ) 126 — 10 292 64 281 134 111 (64 ) 763
26
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Nine Months Nutrition
Ended AgricultureZEleCtrom(.:m.&mt.nal Perfor'malﬁmff(?rmalﬂmffor.maﬁszety & Phaftharen R !
September Commumﬁmmnceﬁ Chemical€oatings Materials Protection
30 ealth*
2011
f;i?em $7.869  $2.543 $416  $1,654  $5934 $3,198 $5197 $2991 $—$39  $29,841
Transfers ¢! ) (14 )y s ) — 1% ) — (81 ) 10 ) — — (305 )
Net sales 7,868 2,529 411 1,654 5,740 3,198 5,116 2981 — 39 29,536
PTOI 1,743 56 313 34 )0 4 )79 1,490 210 773 406 200(179 )7 4,918
2010
CCEMENL 6641 $1991 $—  $902 4658 S2801 $4688 $2505 $-SI54  $24340
Transfers ¢! ) (13 ) — — 162 ) (1 ) (54 ) (8 ) — — 239 )
Net sales 6,640 1,978 — 902 4496 2,800 4,634 2497 — 154 24,101
PTOI 1,478 339 — 44 756 184 772 357 402(111 ) 4,221
1 A reconciliation of total segment PTOI to income before income taxes is as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Total segment PTOI $850 $763 $4,918 $4,221
Net exchange losses, including affiliates (6 ) (160 ) (145 ) (25 )
Corporate expenses and net interest (275 ) (273 ) (913 ) (711 )
Income before income taxes $569 $330 $3,860 $3,485

As of September 30, 2011, Agriculture net assets were $8,058, an increase of $3,131 from $4,927 at December 31,

2 2010. The increase was primarily due to higher trade receivables due to normal seasonality in the sales and cash
collections cycle.

5 As of September 30, 2011, Industrial Biosciences net assets were $2,596 compared to $0 at December 31, 2010, due
to the Danisco acquisition.

4 As of September 30, 2011, Nutrition & Health net assets were $6,497, an increase of $5,547 from $950 at
December 31, 2010. The increase was primarily due to the Danisco acquisition.
Included a $(50) charge recorded in research and development expense in connection with a milestone payment

5 associated with a Pioneer licensing agreement. Since this milestone was reached before regulatory approval was
secured by Pioneer, it was charged to research and development expense.

¢ Included a $(75) charge recorded in cost of goods sold and other operating charges associated with the company's
process to fairly resolve claims associated with the use of Imprelis®. See Note 11 for additional information.

- Included a $(36) restructuring charge impacting the following segments: Industrial Biosciences - $(8); Nutrition &
Health - $(10); and Other - $(18). See Note 4 for additional information.
Included a $(132) charge for the fair value step-up of inventories that were acquired as part of the Danisco

8 transaction and sold in the third quarter 2011, which impacted the segments as follows: Industrial Biosciences -
$(53) and Nutrition & Health - $(79).

9 Included second and third quarter 2011 charges totaling $(182) for transaction related costs and the fair value
step-up of inventories that were acquired as part of the Danisco transaction, which impacted the segments as
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Ttermn 2 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
"OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statements About Forward-Looking Statements

9 ¢

This report contains forward-looking statements which may be identified by their use of words like “plans,” “expects,”
“will,” “anticipates,” "believes," “intends,” “projects,” “estimates” or other words of similar meaning. All statements that addre
expectations or projections about the future, including statements about the company's strategy for growth, product
development, regulatory approval, market position, anticipated benefits of recent acquisitions, outcome of

contingencies, such as litigation and environmental matters, expenditures and financial results, are forward-looking

statements.

99 ¢ 9 ¢

Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events which may not be
accurate or realized. Forward-looking statements also involve risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the
company's control. Some of the important factors that could cause the company's actual results to differ materially
from those projected in any such forward-looking statements are:

Fluctuations in energy and raw material prices;

Failure to develop and market new products and optimally manage product life cycles;

Outcome of significant litigation and environmental matters, including those related to divested businesses;

Failure to appropriately manage process safety and product stewardship issues;

Effect of changes in tax, environmental and other laws and regulations or political conditions in the United States of
America (U.S.) and other countries in which the company operates;

Conditions in the global economy and global capital markets, including economic factors, such as inflation, deflation
and fluctuations in currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices, as well as regulatory requirements;
Impact of business disruptions, including supply disruptions, and security threats, regardless of cause, including acts
of sabotage, terrorism or war, weather events and natural disasters;

{nability to protect and enforce the company's intellectual property rights; and

Successful integration of acquired businesses and completion of divestitures of underperforming or non-strategic
assets or businesses.

For additional information on these and other risks and factors that could affect our forward-looking statements, see
the company's Risk Factors set forth under Part I, Item 1A of the company's 2010 Annual Report.

Results of Operations

Danisco Acquisition

On May 19, 2011, the company acquired approximately 92.2 percent of Danisco's outstanding shares, excluding
treasury shares, pursuant to the previously announced tender offer. As of September 30, 2011, DuPont had acquired
all of Danisco's remaining outstanding shares. The Danisco acquisition is valued at $6,417 million, plus net debt

assumed of $617 million.

As part of the acquisition, DuPont incurred $3 million and $85 million in transaction related costs in the third quarter
2011 and year-to-date 2011, respectively. These costs were recorded in cost of goods sold and other operating charges.

During the third quarter 2011, the company initiated a series of actions to achieve the expected cost and revenue

synergies associated with the Danisco acquisition. As part of these actions, the company expects to incur restructuring
charges in the third and fourth quarters 2011 totaling approximately $50-65 million, of which $36 million was accrued

64



Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

for in the third quarter 2011. Additionally, the company expects to incur about $50 million of other costs to achieve
synergies through 2013, including operating enhancements, consulting fees and relocation related costs, which will be
expensed as incurred. These actions are expected to produce pre-tax annual cost savings of at least $130 million
beginning in 2013.

In the second and third quarters 2011, the businesses acquired from Danisco contributed net sales of $1.0 billion and
net income attributable to DuPont of $(50) million, which excludes $20 million after-tax ($26 million pre-tax) of
additional interest expense related to the debt issued to finance the acquisition. These contributions included a $125
million after-tax ($175 million pre-tax) charge related to the fair value step-up of inventories acquired and sold during
this time period.

See Note 2 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Net sales of $9.2 billion for the third quarter increased 32 percent versus prior year with net income attributable to
DuPont for the third quarter increasing 23 percent to $452 million. Year to date, sales were up 23 percent, with net
income attributable to DuPont up 17 percent. For the third quarter, earnings growth largely reflects a significant
increase for the company's Titanium Technologies business driven by strong market demand and tight supplies
globally for titanium dioxide. Crop protection and seed products sales volumes in Latin America increased versus the
prior year, which more than offset the destocking in certain markets for electronic materials and specialty polymers.
The company continues to execute strategies for further development and growth of new products, including the
successful integration of the businesses acquired from Danisco. Agriculture, photovoltaics, alternative energy and
high value-in-use materials continue to be key focus areas for the company as it addresses global megatrend needs for
increased food supply, reduced environmental footprint and security. Programs for productivity remain on track to
support a strong balance sheet, cash generation and capital resources.

Net Sales

Net sales for the third quarter 2011 were $9.2 billion versus $7.0 billion in the prior year, a 32 percent increase
reflecting 15 percent higher local selling prices, 1 percent higher sales volume, a 4 percent benefit from currency and a
12 percent net increase from portfolio changes, principally the Danisco acquisition. Local selling prices were
significantly higher for titanium dioxide reflecting strong demand and tight global supply. Prices were also higher for
seeds, fluoroproducts and electronic materials, the latter reflecting pass-through of higher precious metals costs. The 1
percent global sales volume increase reflects a 26 percent increase for the Agriculture segment, largely offset by
declines in the Electronics & Communications and Performance Materials segments. Sales in developing markets! of
$3.6 billion increased 38 percent versus 2010, representing 39 percent of total company sales in the quarter.

The table below shows a regional breakdown of net sales based on location of customers and percentage variances
from the prior year:

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011 Percent Change Due to:
Percent
Net .Sa.l ©s Change vs. chal Currency Volume Portfolio
($ Billions) 2010 Price Effect
Worldwide $9.2 32 15 4 1 12
U.S. & Canada 2.9 23 12 — (1 ) 12
Europe, Middle East & Africa (EMEA) 2.4 40 14 11 2 ) 17
Asia Pacific 2.4 29 18 4 (1 ) 8
Latin America 1.5 43 16 3 17 7
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1 Developing markets include China, India and countries located in Latin America, Eastern and Central Europe,
Middle East, Africa and Southeast Asia.
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Net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 were $29.5 billion versus $24.1 billion in the prior year, an
increase of 23 percent reflecting 11 percent higher local selling prices, 4 percent higher sales volume, a 3 percent
benefit from currency and a 5 percent net increase from portfolio changes. Local selling prices principally reflect
higher prices for titanium dioxide, seeds, fluoroproducts and pass-through of significantly higher precious metals
costs. Sales volume was higher across all regions and all segments with the exception of Performance Materials. Sales
in developing markets of $9.7 billion improved 32 percent from 2010, and the percentage of total company sales in
these markets increased to 33 percent from 31 percent in the prior year.

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2011 Percent Change Due to:
Percent
Net .Sa.l ©s Change vs. chal Currency Volume Portfolio
($ Billions) 2010 Price Effect
Worldwide $29.5 23 11 3 4 5
U.S. & Canada 11.6 16 9 — 1 6
EMEA 7.7 24 9 5 4 6
Asia Pacific 6.7 28 16 3 5 4
Latin America 3.5 35 14 3 15 3

Other Income, Net

Other income, net, totaled $161 million for the third quarter 2011 as compared to $66 million in the prior year, an
increase of $95 million. The increase is largely attributable to a decrease in net pre-tax exchange losses of $154
million, offset by a $41 million reduction of Cozaar®/Hyzaar® income.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, other income, net, was $415 million as compared to $890 million last
year, a decrease of $475 million. The decrease is largely attributable to a $202 million reduction of Cozaar®/Hyzaar®
income, an increase of $120 million in net pre-tax exchange losses, the absence of a benefit of $59 million recorded in
2010 related to accrued interest associated with settlements of income tax contingencies related to prior years, a $58
million decrease in net gains on sales of assets and a $38 million decrease in insurance recoveries.

Additional information related to the company's other income, net, is included in Note 3 to the interim Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Cost of Goods Sold and Other Operating Charges (COGS)

COGS totaled $7.1 billion in the third quarter 2011 versus $5.4 billion in the prior year, an increase of 31 percent.
COGS as a percent of net sales decreased 1 percentage point to 77 percent as higher selling prices and productivity
improvements more than offset higher costs for raw material, energy and freight, $132 million of additional COGS
related to the fair value step-up of inventory acquired from Danisco and a $75 million charge related to Imprelis®
claims.

COGS for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $21.1 billion, an increase of 23 percent versus $17.2 billion
in the prior year. COGS was 72 percent of net sales, which was essentially flat compared to prior year. Year-to-date
2011 COGS included $175 million of additional COGS related to the fair value step-up of inventory acquired from
Danisco, $85 million of Danisco transaction related fees and a $75 million charge related to Imprelis® claims. These
costs along with higher raw material, energy and freight costs were offset by higher selling prices and productivity
improvements.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A)

SG&A totaled $1.0 billion for the third quarter 2011 versus $0.8 billion in the prior year. Year-to-date SG&A totaled
$3.2 billion versus $2.8 billion in 2010. The increase for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 was
due to increased global commissions, selling and marketing investments, as well as the addition of selling expense of
acquired companies. SG&A was approximately 11 percent of net sales for the three and nine month periods ended
September 30, 2011, and 11 percent and 12 percent for the same periods in 2010, respectively.
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R&D totaled $557 million and $409 million for the third quarter 2011 and 2010, respectively. For the nine month
period ended September 30, 2011, R&D was $1.4 billion versus $1.2 billion last year. The increase for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2011 in R&D was primarily due to the addition of R&D from acquired companies,
a $50 million charge for a milestone payment related to a Pioneer licensing agreement and continued growth
investment in the Agriculture segment. R&D was approximately 6 percent of net sales for the third quarter 2011 and
2010. R&D was approximately 5 percent of net sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Interest Expense

Interest expense totaled $116 million and $103 million for the third quarter 2011 and 2010, respectively. For the nine
month period ended September 30, 2011, interest expense was $331 million versus $309 million last year. The
increase for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 was primarily due to higher average debt resulting
from financing for the Danisco acquisition, partially offset by lower interest rates.

Employee Separation / Asset Related Charges, Net

In connection with the Danisco acquisition, the company recorded a $36 million restructuring charge for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2011. For additional information related to this restructuring program, see the
Danisco Acquisition section beginning on page 28 of this report and Note 4 to the interim Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Provision for Income Taxes

The company's effective tax rate for the third quarter 2011 was 19.2 percent as compared to (11.8) percent in 2010.
The change in effective tax rate in 2011 principally relates to the tax impact associated with the company's policy of
hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of its operations.

The company's effective tax rate for year-to-date 2011 was 18.8 percent as compared to 23.3 percent in 2010. The
change in effective tax rate in 2011 principally relates to the tax impact associated with the company's policy of
hedging the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities of its operations and geographic mix of
earnings.

See Note 5 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Net Income Attributable to DuPont (Earnings)

Earnings for the third quarter 2011 were $452 million, a 23 percent increase versus prior year. The increase is
principally due to higher local selling prices, currency benefit and higher volume, partly offset by higher raw material,
energy and freight costs, increased spending for growth initiatives and Danisco acquisition related costs.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, earnings were $3.1 billion compared to $2.7 billion in the prior year,
a 17 percent increase. The increase in earnings principally reflects higher local selling prices, higher sales volume and
currency benefit, partly offset by higher raw material, energy and freight costs, increased spending for growth

initiatives, lower Pharmaceuticals income and Danisco acquisition related costs.

Corporate Outlook
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Given the strong performance in the third quarter, the company revised its full-year 2011 earnings outlook to $3.64 -
$3.74 per share on a reported basis. Expectations for the fourth quarter include slowing global growth, some
destocking, and the recognition that a portion of Agriculture sales in Latin America was shifted to the third quarter by
the early start of the planting season. The current outlook includes acquisition related costs estimated to be
$(0.23)-$(0.25) per share, a $(0.05) per share charge in the third quarter related to Imprelis® claims and a $(0.03) per
share charge in the third quarter related to a Pioneer licensing agreement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of recent accounting pronouncements.
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Segment Reviews

In the second quarter 2011, in view of the company's expanded business portfolio following the Danisco acquisition,
two new reportable segments were added: Industrial Biosciences and Nutrition & Health. The Industrial Biosciences
segment includes Danisco's enzyme business and the DuPont Sorona® renewably sourced polymer and Bio-PDO™
businesses, previously reported in Other. Danisco's enzyme business is a world leader in industrial biotechnology that
helps customers improve their performance and environmental footprint. This new Industrial Biosciences segment is a
leading developer and manufacturer of industrial enzymes, partnering with global leaders in a wide range of
industries.

The new Nutrition & Health segment contains Danisco's specialty food ingredients business and DuPont's Nutritional
& Health business, previously reported as part of the Agriculture & Nutrition segment. The former Agriculture &
Nutrition segment, now renamed Agriculture, includes the Pioneer and Crop Protection businesses. Danisco's
specialty food ingredients businesses principally deliver safe and healthy solutions to a wide range of food and
beverage products. The Nutrition & Health segment holds leading positions within cultures, emulsifiers, gums and
natural sweeteners through close-partnering with the world's food manufacturers. Key applications include dairy,
baking, ice cream, beverages, confectionery, dietary supplements and chewing gum.

Additional information related to the company's reportable segments is included in Note 15 to the interim
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Summarized below are comments on individual segment sales and pre-tax operating income (loss) (PTOI) for the
three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2011 compared with the same periods in 2010. Segment sales
include transfers to another business segment. Products are transferred between segments on a basis intended to
reflect, as nearly as practicable, the market value of the products. Segment PTOI is defined as operating income (loss)
before income taxes, exchange gains (losses), corporate expenses and interest. All references to selling prices are on a
U.S. dollar (USD) basis, including the impact of currency. A reconciliation of segment sales to consolidated net sales
and segment PTOI to income before income taxes for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2011 and
2010 is included in Note 15 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements.

In connection with the Danisco acquisition, the company recorded a $36 million restructuring charge in the third
quarter 2011, which reduced segment PTOI as follows: Industrial Biosciences - $8 million, Nutrition & Health - $10
million, and Other - $18 million. See Note 4 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

The following tables summarize third quarter and year-to-date 2011 segment sales and related variances versus prior
year:

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2011 Percentage Change Due to:
Segment Percent . .
Sales! Change vs. IS)reilileng Volume apgclitf(;):}llzr
($ Billions) 2010
Agriculture $14 41 15 26 —
Electronics & Communications 0.8 20 28 (8 ) —
Industrial Biosciences 0.3 nm nm nm nm
Nutrition & Health 0.8 178 6 4 168

72



Edgar Filing: TE Connectivity Ltd. - Form PRE 14A

Performance Chemicals
Performance Coatings
Performance Materials
Safety & Protection

1 Segment sales include transfers.

nm - not meaningful
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Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2011 Percentage Change Due to:
Segment Percent

Sales! Change vs. IS)reilileng Volume apggtf(;):;(;r

($ Billions) 2010
Agriculture $7.9 18 6 11 1
Electronics & Communications 2.5 28 25 3 —
Industrial Biosciences 0.4 nm nm nm nm
Nutrition & Health 1.7 83 5 2 76
Performance Chemicals 59 27 26 1 —
Performance Coatings 32 14 11 3 —
Performance Materials 52 11 13 (1 ) (1 )
Safety & Protection 3.0 19 5 7 7

1 Segment sales include transfers.
nm - not meaningful

Agriculture - Sales of $1.4 billion were up $0.4 billion, or 41 percent, from 26 percent higher volume and 15 percent
higher selling prices principally reflecting a strong, early start to the Latin American season. Pioneer volume and price
growth was delivered in both corn and soybeans. Crop Protection sales increased across all regions and market
segments, led by continued strong demand for Rynaxypyr® insecticide. PTOI of $(194) million was essentially flat as
higher sales were offset by a $75 million charge related to Imprelis® claims and a $50 million charge in connection
with a milestone payment associated with a Pioneer licensing agreement.

Year-to-date sales of $7.9 billion increased 18 percent with 11 percent higher volume, 6 percent higher selling prices
and a 1 percent favorable impact from portfolio changes. Pioneer seed business delivered volume and pricing gains in
all regions, as well as a benefit from portfolio changes. Crop Protection sales growth was underpinned by continued
strong demand for Rynaxypyr® insecticide, solid herbicide and picoxystrobin fungicide growth, partly offset by the
impact of divested businesses. Year-to-date PTOI of $1.7 billion increased 18 percent on strong sales performance.
PTOI included a $75 million charge related to Imprelis® claims and a $50 million charge related to a Pioneer licensing
agreement.

Electronics & Communications - Sales of $841 million were up 20 percent, with 28 percent higher selling prices,
primarily pass-through of metals prices, offset by 8 percent lower volume. Lower volume reflects destocking in
photovoltaics and softness in plasma displays and packaging graphics. PTOI of $99 million decreased $27 million on
lower volume.

Year-to-date sales of $2.5 billion were up 28 percent, with 25 percent higher selling prices, primarily pass-through of
metals prices, and 3 percent higher volume. Higher volume reflects strong demand for photovoltaics and consumer
electronics in Asia Pacific in the first half 2011. Year-to-date PTOI of $313 million decreased $26 million primarily
due to extreme volatility of metals pricing which reduced PTOI by about $20 million in the second quarter 2011 and
lower volume in the third quarter 2011.

Industrial Biosciences - Sales of $293 million and PTOI of $(27) million primarily reflects the acquisition of Danisco's
enzyme business. PTOI included a $53 million charge for the fair value step-up of inventories that were acquired as
part of the acquisition and sold in the third quarter 2011 and an $8 million restructuring charge described above. PTOI
also included approximately $4 million of amortization expense associated with the fair value step-up of the acquired
intangible assets.
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Year-to-date sales of $416 million and PTOI of $(34) million primarily reflects the Danisco acquisition. Year-to-date
PTOI included a $70 million charge for transaction and integration related costs and the fair value step-up of
inventories that were acquired as part of the acquisition and an $8 million restructuring charge. PTOI also included
approximately $6 million of amortization expense associated with the fair value step-up of the acquired intangible
assets.

Nutrition & Health - Sales of $844 million were up $540 million principally due to the acquisition of Danisco's
specialty food ingredients business. PTOI of $(34) million decreased $44 million as higher sales were more than offset
by a $79 million charge for the fair value step-up of inventories that were acquired as part of the acquisition and sold
in the third quarter 2011 and a $10 million restructuring charge described above. PTOI also included approximately
$22 million of amortization expense associated with the fair value step-up of the acquired intangible assets.
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Year-to-date sales of $1.7 billion were up 83 percent, with a 76 percent increase from the Danisco acquisition, 5
percent higher selling prices and 2 percent volume growth. Year-to-date PTOI was $(4) million, a decrease of $48
million from the same period last year, as higher sales were more than offset by a $112 million charge for transaction
and integration related costs and the fair value step-up of inventories that were acquired and a $10 million
restructuring charge. PTOI also included approximately $29 million of amortization expense associated with the fair
value step-up of the acquired intangible assets.

Performance Chemicals - Sales of $2.1 billion were up 28 percent, with 29 percent higher selling prices offset by 1
percent lower volume. Higher selling prices were driven by strong global demand for titanium dioxide and
fluoropolymers and pass-through pricing of higher raw material costs for industrial chemicals. Volume declined in
refrigerants and industrial chemicals. PTOI of $593 million increased $301 million due to higher selling prices.

Year-to-date sales of $5.9 billion increased 27 percent from the same period last year, reflecting 26 percent higher
selling prices and 1 percent higher volume. Higher selling prices were primarily driven by strong demand for titanium
dioxide and fluoropolymers. Year-to-date PTOI was $1.5 billion, an improvement of $0.7 billion, primarily due to
higher selling prices.

Performance Coatings - Sales of $1.1 billion were up 17 percent, with 13 percent higher selling prices and 4 percent
higher volume. Higher selling prices reflect favorable currency and pricing actions across all market segments to
offset higher raw material costs. Demand increased for OEM motor vehicle coatings and remained strong for
industrial coatings, particularly in North American heavy-duty truck market. PTOI of $72 million increased $8 million
on strong sales performance led by refinish.

Year-to-date sales of $3.2 billion increased 14 percent from the same period last year, reflecting 11 percent higher
selling prices and 3 percent higher volume. The sales increase occurred in all regions. Higher selling prices reflect
pricing actions across all market segments to offset higher raw material costs along with a favorable currency impact.
Volume growth reflects increased demand in industrial coatings, particularly in the North American heavy-duty truck
market, along with increases in volume in the OEM market. Year-to-date PTOI was $210 million, an improvement of
$26 million from the same period last year. The increase in PTOI primarily reflects the impact of higher sales.

Performance Materials - Sales of $1.7 billion were up 11 percent, with 18 percent higher selling prices offset by 7
percent lower volume. Higher selling prices offset higher raw material costs. Lower volume reflects broad-based
channel destocking along with softening in consumer and industrial markets, and production-related supply issues in
ethylene-based polymers. PTOI of $231 million decreased $50 million on lower volume.

Year-to-date sales of $5.2 billion were up 11 percent, with 13 percent higher selling prices, partially offset by 1
percent lower volume and 1 percent reduction from a portfolio change. Higher selling prices in all market segments
and regions stemmed from pricing actions to offset higher raw material costs. Year-to-date PTOI of $773 million was
essentially flat as higher sales were partially offset by the absence of a $27 million benefit from both a gain on the sale
of a business and an insurance recovery in the prior year.

Safety & Protection - Sales of $1.0 billion were up 15 percent, with 8 percent higher selling prices and a 7 percent
increase from the MECS, Inc. (“MECS”) acquisition, while volume remained flat. Higher selling prices primarily reflect
pricing actions to offset raw material cost increases. PTOI of $118 million decreased $16 million on destocking in
industrial markets and higher spending for growth initiatives including the Kevlar® high strength material expansion

at Cooper River, South Carolina, which more than offset the impact of the MECS acquisition and favorable currency.

Year-to-date sales of $3.0 billion were 19 percent higher than prior year, with a 7 percent increase from the MECS
acquisition, 7 percent higher volume and 5 percent higher selling prices. Sales growth came from increased demand
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for aramid and nonwoven products principally in the industrial market in the first half 2011. Year-to-date PTOI of
$406 million increased $49 million as the impact of the MECS acquisition and higher sales more than offset higher
raw material, energy and freight costs and higher spending for growth initiatives.

Pharmaceuticals - Third quarter PTOI was $70 million compared to $111 million in the same period last year.
Year-to-date PTOI was $200 million compared to $402 million in the prior year, reflecting the expiration of certain
patents for Cozaar® Hyzaar®.

Other - Sales in the third quarter of $2 million decreased $47 million from the third quarter 2010. Third quarter PTOI

was $(78) million compared to $(64) million in the same period last year. The PTOI fluctuation reflects lower sales
and an $18 million restructuring charge described above.
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Year-to-date sales were $39 million compared to $154 million in 2010. Year-to-date PTOI was $(179) million
compared to $(111) million in the same period last year. The PTOI fluctuation reflects lower sales, the absence of $31
million in insurance recoveries in the prior year and an $18 million restructuring charge.

Liquidity & Capital Resources

Management believes the company's ability to generate cash from operations and access to capital markets will be
adequate to meet anticipated cash requirements to fund working capital, capital spending, dividend payments, debt
maturities and other cash needs. The company's liquidity needs can be met through a variety of sources, including:
cash provided by operating activities, cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, commercial paper, syndicated
credit lines, bilateral credit lines, equity and long-term debt markets and asset sales. The company's current strong
financial position, liquidity and credit ratings provide excellent access to the capital markets. In addition, spending and
working capital productivity actions have been implemented. The company will continue to monitor the financial
markets in order to respond to changing conditions.

Pursuant to its cash discipline policy, the company seeks first to maintain a strong balance sheet and second, to return
excess cash to shareholders unless the opportunity to invest for growth is compelling. Cash and cash equivalents and
marketable securities balances of $3.0 billion as of September 30, 2011 provide primary liquidity to support all
short-term obligations. The company has access to approximately $4.6 billion in unused credit lines with several
major financial institutions, as additional support to meet short-term liquidity needs and general corporate purposes
including letters of credit.

The company continually reviews its debt portfolio and occasionally may rebalance it to ensure adequate liquidity and
an optimum debt maturity schedule.

Credit Ratings

In January 2011, after the announcement of the tender offer for Danisco, Moody's Investors Service placed all of the
company's credit ratings under review for possible downgrade. In July 2011, Moody's Investors Service affirmed the
company's “A2/P-1" ratings and revised the outlook to “Stable”. During the first quarter 2011, Fitch Ratings revised the
company's credit outlook to “Stable” from “Negative” and affirmed the company's current ratings. Standard & Poor's
responded to the tender offer announcement by placing the company on credit watch with negative implications.
Subsequent to this change, in the second quarter 2011, Standard & Poor's affirmed the company's “A/A-1" ratings and
revised the outlook to “Stable” from “Negative”.

The company remains committed to a strong financial position and strong investment-grade rating. The company's
credit ratings impact its access to the debt capital market and cost of capital. The company's long-term and short-term
credit ratings are as follows:

Long-term Short-term Outlook
Standard & Poor’s A A-1 Stable
Moody’s Investors Service A2 P-1 Stable
Fitch Ratings A F1 Stable

Summary of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities was $431 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to

cash provided by operating activities of $35 million during the same period ended in 2010. The $396 million increase
was primarily due to higher earnings and lower contributions to pension plans, partially offset by increases in working
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capital, mainly driven by higher changes in accounts receivable, due to higher sales, and inventory.

Cash used for investing activities was $5.6 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to cash
used by investing activities of $0.3 billion for the same period last year. The $5.3 billion increase was mainly due to
the cash paid to acquire Danisco and a net reduction in proceeds from forward exchange contract settlements, partially
offset by higher proceeds from the sale of short-term financial instruments. Purchases of property, plant and
equipment for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 totaled $1.2 billion, an increase of $0.3 billion compared to
the prior year due to continued growth investments aligned with the company's global trends.
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Cash provided by financing activities was $3.6 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to
cash provided by $0.4 billion for the same period last year. The $3.2 billion increase was primarily due to net proceeds
from borrowings to finance the Danisco acquisition and an increase in the proceeds from the exercise of stock options,
partially offset by cash used to repurchase common stock.

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
(Dollars in millions) 2011 2010
Cash provided by operating activities $431 $35
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,211 ) (899 )
Free cash flow $(780 ) $(864 )

Free cash flow is a measurement not recognized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and should not be viewed as an alternative to GAAP measures of performance. All companies do not calculate
non-GAAP financial measures in the same manner and, accordingly, the company's free cash flow definition may not
be consistent with the methodologies used by other companies. The company defines free cash flow as cash provided
by operating activities less purchases of property, plant and equipment, and therefore indicates operating cash flow
available for payment of dividends, other investing activities, and other financing activities. Free cash flow is useful to
investors and management to evaluate the company's cash flow and financial performance, and is an integral financial
measure used in the company's financial planning process.

Dividends paid to shareholders during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 totaled $1.2 billion, including the
third quarter 2011 dividend declared on July 15, 2011. In October 2011, the company's Board of Directors declared a
fourth quarter common stock dividend of $0.41 per share. The fourth quarter dividend was the company's 429th
consecutive quarterly dividend since the company's first dividend in the fourth quarter 1904.

The company’s Board of Directors authorized a $2.0 billion share buyback plan in June 2001. During the three months
ended September 30, 2011, the company purchased and retired 8.8 million shares at a total cost of $400 million under
this plan. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the company purchased and retired 13.8 million shares
at a total cost of $672 million under this plan. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2010, there were
no purchases of stock under this plan. As of September 30, 2011, the company has purchased 39.7 million shares at a
total cost of $1.9 billion. In April 2011, the company's Board of Directors authorized a $2.0 billion share buyback
plan. This plan will not commence until the plan authorized in June 2001 is completed. There is no expiration date on
the current authorizations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities were $3.0 billion at September 30, 2011, a decrease of $3.8
billion from $6.8 billion at December 31, 2010. The reduction was primarily due to the cash paid to acquire Danisco
coupled with the funding of normal working capital needs, purchases of property, plant and equipment, dividend
payments and the repurchase of common stock.

Debt

Total debt at September 30, 2011 was $15.5 billion, an increase of $5.2 billion from $10.3 billion at December 31,
2010. The increase was primarily due to the first quarter 2011 issuance of $2.0 billion in Senior Notes and the second
quarter 2011 issuance of $1.0 billion in commercial paper to finance the acquisition of Danisco, as well as the
assumption of approximately $0.7 billion in Danisco's debt, of which $0.6 billion was refinanced through the issuance
of commercial paper. The proceeds from the remainder of increased borrowings were used to fund normal seasonal
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working capital needs.
Guarantees and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

For detailed information related to Guarantees, Indemnifications, and Obligations for Equity Affiliates and Others, see
pages 37 - 38 of the company's 2010 Annual Report, and Note 11 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Contractual Obligations

Information related to the company's contractual obligations at December 31, 2010 can be found on page 39 of the
company's 2010 Annual Report. The company's contractual obligations at September 30, 2011 have increased
approximately $3.0 billion versus prior year-end. The increase is primarily attributable to $2.0 billion of long-term
debt issued to finance the Danisco acquisition and $0.6 billion of contractual obligations assumed as part of the
Danisco acquisition.

PFOA

See discussion under “PFOA” on pages 46-47 of the company's 2010 Annual Report and Note 11 to the interim
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See Note 13, “Derivatives and Other Hedging Instruments”, to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements. See also
Part II, Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, on pages 47 - 49 of the company's 2010
Annual Report for information on the company's utilization of financial instruments and an analysis of the sensitivity
of these instruments.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures to give reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in the company's reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the
Securities and Exchange Commission. These controls and procedures also give reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in such reports is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

As of September 30, 2011, the company's Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), together
with management, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and procedures
pursuant to Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, the CEO and CFO
concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the third quarter 2011, the company completed the acquisition of Danisco A/S (Danisco) (see Note 2 to the
interim Consolidated Financial Statements), which represented approximately 20 percent of DuPont's total assets as of
September 30, 2011. The company is in the process of fully integrating Danisco into its internal controls over
financial reporting.

Other than as described above, there has been no change in the company's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the quarter ended September 30, 2011 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the company's internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The company is subject to various litigation matters, including, but not limited to, product liability, patent
infringement, antitrust claims, and claims for third party property damage or personal injury stemming from alleged
environmental torts. Information regarding certain of these matters is set forth below and in Note 11 to the interim
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Litigation
PFOA: Environmental and Litigation Proceedings

Information related to this matter is included in Note 11 to the interim Consolidated Financial Statements under the
heading PFOA.

Environmental Proceedings
Belle Plant, West Virginia

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is investigating three chemical releases at DuPont's Belle facility in
West Virginia which occurred in January 2010. One of the releases involved the death of a DuPont employee after
exposure to phosgene.

Chambers Works Plant, Deepwater, New Jersey

In 2010, the government initiated an enforcement action alleging that the facility violated recordkeeping requirements
of certain provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Federal Clean Air Act Regulations (FCAR) governing Leak
Detection and Reporting and that it failed to report emissions of a compound from Chambers Works' waste water
treatment facility under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act. The alleged non-compliance
was identified by EPA in 2007 and 2009 following separate environmental audits. DuPont is in settlement
negotiations with EPA and the Department of Justice (DOJ).

DuPont and the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) have agreed in principle to settle
alleged violations of hazardous waste regulations in 2009. DuPont will pay a penalty of $725,000 and enhance its
program to manage historical residual waste materials at Chambers Works.

DuPont and DOJ have agreed in principle to settle allegations of environmental non-compliance at Chambers Works
that arose from an investigation into DuPont's management of hazardous waste in rail cars. DuPont will pay a
$250,000 penalty and enhance the program for management of on-site rail cars containing hazardous waste.

Edge Moor Plant, Edgemoor, Delaware

DuPont, the State of Delaware, EPA and DOJ have agreed in principle on a $500,000 penalty and an engineering
analysis of Edge Moor's wastewater handling systems to settle allegations of permit non-compliance under certain

Clean Water Act.

Yerkes Plant, Buffalo, New York
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The government alleges that the facility violated recordkeeping requirements of certain provisions of the CAA and the
FCAR governing Leak Detection and Reporting and that it failed to accurately report emissions under the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act. The alleged non-compliance was identified by EPA in 2006 and 2010
following separate environmental audits. DuPont is in settlement negotiations with EPA and DOJ.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes in the company's risk factors from those disclosed in Part I, Item 1A, Risk
Factors, in the company's 2010 Annual Report.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In June 2001, the Board of Directors authorized up to $2.0 billion for repurchases of the company's common stock.
During the third quarter 2011, the company paid $400 million to purchase and retire 8.8 million shares at an average
price of $45.27 per share under this plan. As of September 30, 2011, cumulative purchases of common stock under
this plan are 39.7 million shares at a cost of approximately $1.9 billion. There is no expiration date on the current
authorization and no determination has been made by the company to suspend or cancel purchases under the plan.

The following table summarizes information with respect to the company's purchase of its common stock during the
three months ended September 30, 2011:

Total Number of Approximate Value

Total Number of Shares Average Price Shares Purchased as of Shares that May
Month . . Yet Be Purchased
Purchased Paid per Share Part of Publicly
Announced Program Under the Program
g (Dollars in millions)
September 8,836,596 $45.27 8,836,596 $116
Total 8,836,596 8,836,596

Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION

The company owns and operates a surface mine near Starke, Florida. The company is contesting citations issued by
the Mine Safety and Health Administration in the third quarter 2011, including 19 violations that could significantly
and substantially contribute to the cause and effect of a mine safety or health hazard under the Mine Safety and Health
Act of 1977. Penalties for these citations have not yet been assessed.

Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits: The list of exhibits in the Exhibit Index to this report is incorporated herein by reference.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
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E. 1. DU PONT DE NEMOURS AND COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: October 25, 2011

By: /s/Nicholas C. Fanandakis

Nicholas C. Fanandakis

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

(As Duly Authorized Officer and

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Description
Number P

3.1

3.2

10.1*

10.2%

10.3*

10.4%*

10.5%

10.6*

10.7*

10.8%*

10.9%*

10.10%*

Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007).

Company’s Bylaws, as last amended effective November 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009).

The company agrees to provide the Commission, on request, copies of instruments defining the rights
of holders of long-term debt of the company and its subsidiaries.

The DuPont Stock Accumulation and Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as last amended
effective January 1, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).

Company’s Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, as last amended effective June 4, 1996
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006).

Company’s Pension Restoration Plan, as restated effective July 17, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011).

Company’s Rules for Lump Sum Payments, as last amended effective December 20, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2011).

Company’s Stock Performance Plan, as last amended effective January 25, 2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2007).

Company’s Equity and Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective March 2, 2011 and approved
by the company’s shareholders on April 27, 2011 (incorporated by reference to pages B1-B15 of the
company’s Annual Meeting Proxy Statement dated March 18, 2011).

Form of Award Terms under the company’s Equity and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2009).

Company’s Retirement Savings Restoration Plan, as last amended effective June 1, 2011 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
June 30, 2011).

Company’s Retirement Income Plan for Directors, as last amended August 1995 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007).
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Company’s Bicentennial Corporate Sharing Plan, adopted by the Board of Directors on December 12,
2001 and effective January 9, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007).
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Exhibit
Number

10.11%*

10.12%*

12

31.1

31.2

32.1

322

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

Description

Company’s Management Deferred Compensation Plan, adopted on May 2, 2008, as last amended
May 12, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010).

Supplemental Deferral Terms for Deferred Long Term Incentive Awards and Deferred Variable
Compensation Awards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the company’s Principal Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the company’s Principal Financial Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of the company’s Principal Executive Officer. The information contained in
this Exhibit shall not be deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission nor incorporated
by reference in any registration statement filed by the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.

Section 1350 Certification of the company’s Principal Financial Officer. The information contained in
this Exhibit shall not be deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission nor incorporated
by reference in any registration statement filed by the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

*Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-Q.
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